
MINUTES AND MEMORANDA OF A MEETING 
OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Held: April 22, 2021 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority (“IHCDA” or 
“Authority”) was held on Thursday, April 22, 2021 at 10:03 a.m. telephonically. 

The following individuals were present telephonically: Jodi Golden (Lieutenant Governor designee); Indiana Treasurer of 
State Kelly Mitchell; Mark Pascarella (Indiana Public Finance Director designee); Board Member J. June Midkiff; Board 
Member G. Michael Schopmeyer; Board Member Andy Place, Sr; Jacob Sipe (IHCDA Executive Director); members of the 
staff of the Lieutenant Governor, members of the staff of the Authority, and the general public.  Board Member Tom 
McGowan was not in attendance.   

Jodi Golden served as Chair of the meeting and upon noting the presence of a quorum, called the meeting to order. David 
Stewart served as Secretary. 

I. Approval of Minutes 

A. Meeting Minutes

A motion was made by Andy Place, Sr to approve the March 25, 2021 Meeting Minutes, which was seconded by Kelly 
Mitchell and the following Resolution was unanimously approved: 

RESOLVED, the Minutes of the Board meeting held on March 25, 2021 are hereby approved to be placed 
in the Minute Book of the Authority. 

II. Real Estate Department

A. Bond Volume/4% Credits – Meadows on Main, LP

Chairperson Golden recognized Peter Nelson, who presented Bond Volume/4% Credits – Meadows on Main, LP. 

Background: 
IHCDA is empowered to act as the housing credit agency for the State to administer, operate, and manage the allocation of 
the Internal Revenue Service Section 42 low-income housing tax credit (LIHTC) program.  The purpose of the LIHTC is to 
provide an incentive for private developers and investors to provide more affordable rental housing.  This may be 
accomplished by new construction and rehabilitation of existing structures. 

Process: 
On January 1, 2020, IHCDA began the 2020A-B bond round for multi-family bond volume.  The 18th application received 
and reviewed represented a total development cost of $53,049,270 with $35,000,000 in bond volume and $2,435,000 in 
LIHTCs annually for 10 years to create 264 units of affordable housing. 

Kittle Property Group is proposing the new construction of a 264 multifamily development in Whitestown named Meadows 
on Main. The development will consist of one, two, three, and four-bedroom units. Amenities on site include a club house, 
fitness center, computer center, dog park, dog clean up stations, community room with kitchen, and playground. Within two 
miles of the site are a GNC Warehouse, Amazon Distribution Center, the future locations of a Coca-Cola distribution center 
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and Rockwell Automation, and a large retail corridor, providing residents with opportunities for employment, grocery and 
retail shopping, and meeting other daily needs.  The Development Summary sheet is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
During the round, the Real Estate Department staff reviewed the application to ensure it met the criteria set forth in the 2020-
2021 Qualified Allocation Plan. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
 

2020 Bond Approvals 

Location 
# Affordable 
Units Construction Type Development Type 

Indianapolis 159 New Construction Family 
Bloomington 116 Rehabilitation Family 
Washington 150 Rehabilitation Family 
Fort Wayne 94 Rehabilitation Family 
Lafayette 100 Rehabilitation Family 
Goshen  120 New Construction Assisted Living   
New Albany 240 New Construction Family 
Kokomo 335 Rehabilitation Family 
Valparaiso 120 New Construction Assisted Living 
Evansville 120 New Construction Assisted Living 
Jeffersonville 130 New Construction Assisted Living 
Marion 107 New Construction Assisted Living 
Indianapolis 134 Rehabilitation Family 
New Albany 219 Rehabilitation Family 
Whitestown 126 New Construction Assisted Living 
Gary 170 Rehabilitation Age-Restricted 
Indianapolis 130 New Construction Age-Restricted 
Ellettsville & 
Steinsville 161 

New Construction & 
Rehabilitation Age-Restricted 

Total Units:  2,731   
 
Following discussion, a motion was made by Kelly Mitchell to approve awarding $35,000,000 in bond volume and 
$2,435,000 in annual LIHTC to Meadows on Main, LP for Meadows on Main according to the terms of the 2020A-B 
Application Round.  The motion was seconded by G. Michael Schopmeyer.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESOLVED, that the Board approve awarding $35,000,000 in bond volume and $2,435,000 in annual 
LIHTC to Meadows on Main, LP for Meadows on Main according to the terms of the 2020A-B Application 
Round, as recommended by staff. 
 

B. HOME Homebuyer Award Recommendation- Habitat for Humanity of Morgan 
County 

 
Chairperson Golden recognized Samantha Spergel, who presented the HOME Homebuyer Award Recommendation- Habitat 
for Humanity of Morgan County. 
 
Background: 
The HOME Investment Partnerships Program (“HOME”) provides funding to develop affordable housing for low to moderate 
income residents, including the new construction or rehabilitation of units to support homeownership. 
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Process: 
IHCDA opened the HOME Homebuyer Funding Round on April 1, 2019. The application and policy included changes to 
align with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”)’s updated guidance on Homebuyer activities, 
including new underwriting standards, lending practices, and housing counseling. IHCDA held two technical assistance 
webinars to discuss the new HUD regulations regarding the homebuyer program, to provide an overview of the application 
forms, policy, and underwriting workbooks, and to answer any additional questions for entities interested in applying. 
 
IHCDA’s Homebuyer funding is available to non-profits and local units of government with applications being accepted on 
a rolling basis. Applicants may request up to $500,000 per application. 
 
On January 19, 2021, IHCDA received an application for the development of one three-bedroom unit in Morgantown from 
Habitat for Humanity of Morgan County, Inc. IHCDA staff checked the application for completeness, determined whether 
all threshold requirements were met, and scored the application based on requirements outlined in the HOME 2020 
Homebuyer Policy. The application met threshold requirements and scored above the minimum points required to be 
considered for funding. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
IHCDA will track the following Key Performance Indicators in relation to its HOME Homebuyer Program: 
 

1. The total number of Homebuyer units produced with HOME funds. To date, IHCDA has funded 21 HOME 
Homebuyer units since April 1, 2019.  

2. The number of certified Community Housing and Development Organizations (“CHDOs”) applying through this 
program.  To date, IHCDA has certified two CHDOs through this program.  

3. Development benchmark tracking including release of funds, start and completion of construction, funds drawn, 
inspections, and the final closing. 

 
TABLE A 

Award 
Number Applicant Name Project Name 

Application 
Score 

HOME 
Recommendation 

HM-020-001 
 

Habitat for Humanity of 
Morgan County, Inc. Pine Street   63 $60,000 

 
Following discussion, a motion was made by J. June Midkiff to approve awarding HOME funding, in the form of a grant, in 
an amount not to exceed $60,000 to Habitat for Humanity of Morgan County, Inc. for a HOME homebuyer project, as 
recommended by staff.  The motion was seconded by Mark Pascarella. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESOLVED, that the Board approve awarding HOME funding in the form of a grant, in an amount 
not to exceed $60,000 to Habitat for Humanity of Morgan County, Inc. for a HOME homebuyer 
project, as recommended by staff. 

 
 

C. HOME Community Housing Development Organization Predevelopment Loan 
– Correction 

 
Chairperson Golden recognized Matt Rayburn, who presented HOME Community Housing Development Organization 
Predevelopment Loan – Correction. 
 
Background: 
On March 25, 2021, the IHCDA Board of Directors approved HOME Predevelopment Loan funding awards for five 
Community Housing Development Organization (“CHDO”) projects. One of the projects listed in Table A of the board memo 
as “Beechwood Rental New Construction”, was incorrectly described as being located in Beechwood, Indiana.  However, the 
project that New Hope Development Services received approval for was actually located in Clarksville, Indiana.  This 
correction did not impact the staff’s recommendation.  However, out of an abundance of caution, staff is recommending that 
the Board approve the following recommendation: 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board confirm that today’s clarification, that the location of the Beechwood Rental New 
Construction project is actually located in Clarksville instead of Beechwood, does not affect the Board’s original approval 
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that was provided on March 25, 2021 and resulted in the award of a HOME Predevelopment loan in an amount not to exceed 
$14,100 to New Hope Development Services for the Beechwood Rental New Construction project. 
 
Following discussion, a motion was made by Mark Pascarella that the Board confirm that today’s clarification, that the 
location of the Beechwood Rental New Construction project is actually located in Clarksville instead of Beechwood, does 
not affect the Board’s original approval that was provided on March 25, 2021 and resulted in the award of a HOME 
Predevelopment loan in an amount not to exceed $14,100 to New Hope Development Services for the Beechwood Rental 
New Construction project.  The motion was seconded by Andy Place, Sr. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESOLVED, that the Board confirm that today’s clarification, that the location of the Beechwood Rental 
New Construction project is actually located in Clarksville instead of Beechwood, does not affect the 
Board’s original approval that was provided on March 25, 2021 and resulted in the award of a HOME 
Predevelopment loan in an amount not to exceed $14,100 to New Hope Development Services for the 
Beechwood Rental New Construction project, as recommended by staff. 
 
 

D. Project-Based Voucher Awards for Permanent Supportive Housing- South Bend 
Heritage Foundation 

 
Chairperson Golden recognized Jeff  Zongolowicz, who presented Project-Based Voucher Awards for Permanent Supportive 
Housing- South Bend Heritage Foundation. 
 
Background: 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) guidance allows every Public Housing Agency (“PHA”) that 
receives Housing Choice Vouchers to utilize up to 30 percent of its voucher program budget authority for project-based 
vouchers, which attach the funding to specific units rather than using it for tenant-based assistance. 
 
As described in 24 CFR 983.51(b)(2) and IHCDA’s Housing Choice Voucher (“HCV”) Administrative Plan, IHCDA may 
award project-based vouchers to a development previously selected through a competitive process within 3 years of the PBV 
proposal selection date, which includes the Indiana Permanent Supportive Housing Institute (the “Institute”). The goal of the 
Institute is to increase the supply of permanent supportive housing for persons experiencing homelessness. Combining 
affordable housing with supportive services provides the needed stability for individuals to make effective use of treatment 
and lead productive lives. Project-basing vouchers provides an essential subsidy to developments and allows the Housing 
Choice Voucher program to target resources to house individuals that the program could not successfully serve otherwise. 
 
Process 
After completion of the 2020 Institute, South Bend Heritage applied for project-based vouchers to convert a portion of their 
existing units to Permanent Supportive Housing. Upon receiving the requests, staff reviewed additional documentation 
provided by the applicant to assess the suitability/eligibility for the development to receive project-based vouchers. 
 

Project Name: South Bend Heritage PBV Conversion 

Existing Property Name Address 

Total 
Units in 
Property # of PSH Units 0 bed 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 

Robertsons Apartments 211 S. Michigan St 92 10 3 7 0 0 
Rushton Apartments 501 W. Washington 23 4 1 3 0 0 
Gemini 626 W. Colfax 60 6 2 4 0 0 
Washington Dunbar Homes 112 N. Walnut 80 6 0 2 3 1 
New Heritage Homes SE 505 E. Broadway 54 4 0  0 2 2 
Scattered Site 303 Chapin Street 6 2 2 0 0 0 
Scattered Site 225 Taylor Street 2 1 1 0 0 0 

Scattered Site 
1031 W Washington 
Street 6 3 0 3 0 0 

Scattered Site 225 Taylor Street 2 1 0 1 0 0 
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Key Performance Indicators 
IHCDA will track the following Key Performance Indicators for this PBV award: 
 1. The utilization of awarded vouchers by the property 
 2. The total number of chronically homeless households served by the vouchers 
 3. Compliance of the project throughout the 15-year HAP Agreement 
 
Following discussion, a motion was made by G. Michael Schopmeyer to approve an award of thirty-eight (38) project-based 
vouchers to South Bend Heritage for the scattered site units described above, for a period of up to fifteen (15) years, based 
on the annual fair market rents (FMR) for St. Joseph County, as recommended by staff.  The motion was seconded by Kelly 
Mitchell. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESOLVED, that the Board approve an award of thirty-eight (38) project-based vouchers to South Bend 
Heritage for the scattered site units described above, for a period of up to fifteen (15) years, based on the 
annual fair market rents (FMR) for St. Joseph County, as recommended by staff. 
 

 
E. Approval to Accept Transfer- Fayette County Housing Authority Housing 

Choice Voucher Program 
 
Chairperson Golden recognized Jeff Zongolowicz, who presented Approval to Accept Transfer- Fayette County Housing 
Authority Housing Choice Voucher Program. 
 
Background: 
On August 20, 2020, the Fayette County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners passed a board resolution to approve 
the transfer of its Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Budget Authority. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) has requested IHCDA accept the voucher transfer to preserve affordable housing opportunities for the 
households currently benefitting from the Fayette County Housing Authority’s HCV program. 
 
Process 
• The HUD Office of Public and Indian Housing Notice PIH 2018-12 provides the process for voluntary transfers and 

consolidations of Housing Choice Vouchers. 
 

• Following the initial request from HUD for IHCDA to absorb the Fayette County Housing Authority HCV program, 
IHCDA scheduled a phone call with the Indianapolis HUD Field Office to discuss the current state of the Fayette County 
Housing Authority Program. IHCDA has begun planning with its local partner in Fayette County for the administration 
of the vouchers following the transfer. 

 
• Following board approval, IHCDA will send an executed notice to HUD acknowledging the request and accepting the 

receipt of the transfer of vouchers from the Fayette County Housing Authority 
 
HUD has stated it anticipates this transfer to be effective on July 1st, 2021. The Fayette County Housing Authority has an 
annual budget authority of $1,369,126 and serves 263 households (as of March 1, 2020). 
 
Following discussion, a motion was made by J. June Midkiff to approve IHCDA’s acceptance the transfer of the Housing 
Choice Voucher (HCV) Budget Authority from the Fayette County Housing Authority in coordination with HUD, and to do 
and take all actions necessary to effectuate such transfer in a manner which negligibly burdens HCV program clients and 
which limits the transfer to the direct assets and obligations of Fayette County Housing Authority HCV program pursuant to 
Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 1437f, including assuming the allocated vouchers and 
requirements for making housing assistance payments, and specifically not including assuming any other Fayette County 
Housing Authority liabilities, including but not limited to unmet payroll obligations or costs associated with dissolution, as 
recommended by staff.  The motion was seconded by Andy Place, Sr. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

RESOLVED, that the Board approve IHCDA’s acceptance the transfer of the Housing Choice Voucher 
(HCV) Budget Authority from the Fayette County Housing Authority in coordination with HUD, and to do 

Scattered Site 
905/907 Lincoln Way 
West 2 1 0 0 1 0 

TOTAL 327 38 9 20 6 3 
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and take all actions necessary to effectuate such transfer in a manner which negligibly burdens HCV 
program clients and which limits the transfer to the direct assets and obligations of Fayette County Housing 
Authority HCV program pursuant to Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 
1437f, including assuming the allocated vouchers and requirements for making housing assistance 
payments, and specifically not including assuming any other Fayette County Housing Authority liabilities, 
including but not limited to unmet payroll obligations or costs associated with dissolution, as recommended 
by staff. 

III. Community Services Department

A. 2021 Community Services Block Grant Program Agency Impact Awards

Chairperson Golden recognized Veronica Watson, who presented 2021 Community Services Block Grant Program Agency 
Impact Awards. 

Background: 
Each year, Indiana receives approximately $10.5 million in funding from the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG). 
These funds are used to support community action agencies and the programs they manage to address the needs of individuals 
and families with low incomes in their communities. IHCDA is allowed to allocate up to 10 percent of the $10.5 million 
received annually, towards discretionary uses.  Section 675C(b)(1) of the Community Opportunities, Accountability, and 
Training and Educational Services Act of 1998 (the “Act”), allows discretionary funds to be used for a variety of purposes 
that are set forth in the Act, including but not limited to : providing training and technical assistance to those entities in need 
of such training and assistance; and supporting innovative programs and activities conducted by community action agencies 
or other neighborhood-based organizations to eliminate poverty, promote self-sufficiency, and promote community 
revitalization.  IHCDA generally allocates funding for both of these purposes in its biennial CSBG State Plan. This year, 
IHCDA will use these funds to pilot a series of new competitive grant opportunities for community action agencies; one of 
those grant opportunities is the Agency Impact Grant, which focuses on capacity building within community action agency 
operations. 

Key Performance Indicators 
• Recipients of Agency Impact Grants will provide biannual updates on progress made towards the goals outlined in

their applications.
• Within 45 days of the grant term ending, the recipients will provide copies of the documents listed as key deliverables

under each agency’s project description.

Process 
On January 4, IHCDA released a Request for Proposals from community action agencies for projects that would enhance an 
agency’s ability to effectively serve its constituents or community. To be eligible, applicants were required to be in good 
standing with the CSBG program and identify a project that went above and beyond the general program requirements; 
agencies that need assistance correcting and resolving issues identified during program monitoring already have access to 
other funds for this purpose.  Agency Impact Grants were meant solely to be used by agencies that want to move from program 
compliance to operational excellence. 

As a part of their proposal, applicants were required to describe the need for their project and how it will ultimately impact 
either their clients and/or community. Applicants also were required to describe how they will sustain changes made to their 
programs or processes beyond the one-year of funding provided through the Agency Impact Grant.  The term of each Agency 
Impact Grant will begin on May 1, 2021 and end on September 30, 2022. 

A team of three IHCDA staff from two different departments reviewed the two proposals that were received. Funding had 
been set aside for up to three proposals, therefore, after an interview with each applicant, IHCDA offered to increase the 
awards from $12,500 to $20,000 each, upon each applicant submitting updated scopes of work for the following projects:. 

Area IV Agency on Aging and Community Action: Path to Excellence in Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 
Area IV will use its $20,000 to contract with SPARK Consulting to facilitate a series of trainings, activities, and policy 
updates to ensure its agency can “create, cultivate and champion a culture of diversity, inclusion and equity (“DEI”) for 
employees, customers and community members.” 
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SPARK Consulting will specifically be responsible for delivering the following: 
1. Updated internal policies and procedures related to DEI in the workplace.
2. New policies for staff and volunteers to follow when interacting with clients and other community members.
3. A new DEI training module for the on-boarding process of new employees.
4. A new DEI training module for existing employees, to be completed annually.
5. A new DEI Ambassador team, comprised of management and direct support staff, which will facilitate DEI training

sessions, advise policy development, and provide confidential intake of internal reporting of discrimination.

Community Action of Greater Indianapolis: Teachable Evaluation Program 
CAGI will use its $20,000 to contract with the Indiana Youth Institute to complete an evaluation of its WE CANN program 
and use that experience to develop a set of tools and processes for evaluation of other programs, in order to ensure long-term 
effectiveness and sustainability of CAGI programs. 

The Indiana Youth Institute will specifically be responsible for the delivering the following: 
1. Evaluation tools to be used for the WE CANN program.
2. An evaluation report and recommendations for WE CANN.
3. A general agency Standard Operating Procedure for data and evaluations.
4. Up to 30 hours of coaching for agency leadership, staff and/or board members on data, evaluation, and program

development best practices.

Applicants and recommended award amounts are set forth in Table A. 

TABLE A 

Total Recommended Funding Award 

Area IV Agency on Aging and Community Action  $        20,000.00 
CSBG Service Territory: White, Carroll, Tippecanoe, Clinton 

Community Action of Greater Indianapolis  $        20,000.00 
CSBG Service Territory: Boone, Hamilton, Hendricks, Marion 

Total Funding $        40,000.00 

Following discussion, a motion was made by G. Michael Schopmeyer to approve awarding 2021 CSBG Discretionary Funds 
in an aggregate amount not to exceed $40,000 to the applicants set forth in Table A to administer Agency Impact Grant 
projects.  The motion was seconded by Mark Pascarella.  The motion passed unanimously.  

RESOLVED, that the Board approve awarding 2021 CSBG Discretionary Funds in an aggregate amount 
not to exceed $40,000 to the applicants set forth in Table A to administer Agency Impact Grant projects, 
as recommended by staff. 

IV. Finance

A. Meadows on Main, LP Bond Recommendation

Chairperson Golden recognized Richard Harcourt, who presented Meadows on Main, LP Bond Recommendation. 

The purpose of this memo and the attached resolution is to request the approval for the issuance of the Series 2021 Multifamily 
Housing Revenue Notes (Meadows on Main Project) (not to exceed $35,000,000) (the “Bonds”). 

Process 
The Bonds will be issued on behalf of Meadows on Main, LP, an Indiana limited partnership (the “Borrower”).  The Indiana 
Housing and Community Development Authority (the “Authority”) will serve as a conduit issuer for the Bonds; thereby, 
loaning the proceeds to the Borrower to finance the new construction of a residential rental development.  The Bonds are 
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backed solely by the revenues derived from the development and will not constitute a debt, liability, or obligation of 
the Authority or the State of Indiana. 

Meadows on Main, LP is proposing the new construction of a 264-unit multifamily housing complex, to be located at 3863 
South Main Street, Whitestown, Indiana.  With the Authority serving as the issuer of the bonds, an additional approval by the 
Board, in addition to the approval of the allocation of tax credits and bond volume is necessary.   

Following discussion, a motion was made by G. Michael Schopmeyer to approve the Series 2021 Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Bonds (Meadows on Main Project), pursuant to the Resolution attached hereto as Exhibit B.  The motion was 
seconded by Mark Pascarella.  The motion passed unanimously.  

RESOLVED, hat the Board approve the issuance of Series 2021 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Meadows 
on Main Project), pursuant to the Resolution attached hereto as Exhibit B, as recommended by staff. 

B. Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series B

Chairperson Golden recognized Richard Harcourt, who presented Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series B. 

Background: 
In order to continue to fund its single-family mortgage lending program, refinance existing debt and provide down payment 
assistance, the Authority proposes to issue an amount not to exceed $150,000,000 of tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds 
designated “2021 Series B”, issued under the 2016 Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2016.  In 
addition, the Authority may desire to refund certain outstanding obligations if market conditions present savings opportunities 
for the Authority. 

At present, the Authority’s Home First Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series A (the "2011A Bonds"), its Home First 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series B (the "2011B Bonds") and its Home First Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series C 
(the "2011C Bonds" and together with the 2011A Bonds and the 2011B Bonds, the "Prior Bonds"), may be subject to optional 
redemption and offer interest rate savings upon refunding.  The Authority may desire to authorize the refunding of the Prior 
Bonds and issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds to obtain proceeds to continue to fund its lending programs. 

Process 
Over the next 2 -3 months, staff will work with its established working group including Ice Miller as bond counsel, CFX as 
quantitative advisor and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC as the lead underwriter.  Pricing of the bonds is anticipated to be late 
May 2021 or early June 2021, with a closing/funding of the 2021 Series B Bonds occurring June 29, 2021. 

The bond resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

Following discussion, a motion was made by Mark Pascarella to approve the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds and the 
related bond documents and disclosure documents as substantially final in the form presented and authorize any Authorized 
Officer to execute the same.  The motion was seconded by G. Michael Schopmeyer.  The motion passed unanimously.  

RESOLVED, that the Board approve the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds and the related bond 
documents and disclosure documents as substantially final in the form presented and authorize any 
Authorized Officer to execute the same, as recommended by staff. 

C. 2020 IHCDA External Audit

Chairperson Golden recognized Mark Pascarella, who presented 2020 IHCDA External Audit. 

Background: 
This Board established an Audit Committee, which is currently comprised of the following members: Erin Sheridan, Mark 
Pascarella, and Tom McGowan.  The role of this Committee is to ensure the fiscal, operational, and program integrity of 
IHCDA and to make reports and recommendations to the Board. 

Process 
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On April 12, 2021, the IHCDA Audit Committee met with representatives of IHCDA’s auditing firm, BKD, LLP, and IHCDA 
staff to discuss the results of the December 31, 2020 Financial Statement Audit.  The following items were discussed: 

• The financial statements and independent auditors’ report, attached hereto as Exhibit D,
• The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the single audit report) and independent auditors’ report, attached

hereto as Exhibit E, and
• The management comment letter, attached hereto as Exhibit F.

Copies of these documents follow this memorandum. 

Following discussion, a motion was made by Mark Pascarella to approve the December 31, 2020 IHCDA Financial 
Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report, attached hereto as Exhibit D.  The motion was seconded by Andy Place, Sr.  
The motion passed unanimously.  

RESOLVED, that the Board approve the December 31, 2020 IHCDA Financial Statements and 
Independent Auditors’ Report, attached hereto as Exhibit D, as recommended by the Audit Committee and 
staff. 

Following discussion, a motion was made by Mark Pascarella to approves the December 31, 2020 IHCDA Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and Independent Auditors’ Report, attached hereto as Exhibit E.  The motion was seconded 
by J. June Midkiff.  The motion passed unanimously.  

RESOLVED, that the Board approves the December 31, 2020 IHCDA Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and Independent Auditors’ Report, attached hereto as Exhibit E, as recommended by the 
Audit Committee and staff. 

V. Executive

A. Executive Update

Chairperson Golden recognized J. Jacob Sipe, who presented the Executive Update and discussed the following topics: 

1. 2020 IHCDA Annual Report:
a. The 2020 IHCDA Annual Report was released yesterday, and the online version is posted to IHCDA’s website.
b. The IHCDA Annual Report is 39 pages long and very detailed and provides an idea of the amount of work

performed by IHCDA and data that supports the impact of the work.
c. However, the IHCDA Annual Report does not capture the entire amount of the impact that was made by IHCDA

throughout the State in 2020.
d. Both the Annual Report and the Audit that was discussed earlier in this meeting demonstrate that:

o IHCDA has an all-star team;
o IHCDA as a quasi agency, is very nimble; and
o IHCDA uses strategic evidence-based data to implement and prioritize its programs,

policies and processes as it simultaneously listens to those that IHCDA serves, IHCDA
partner organizations, industry leaders and those that are the direct beneficiaries of these
resources in order to promote housing stability in our communities.

e. J. Sipe recognized the individuals listed below for their work on the Audit:
o Rich Harcourt;
o Vinya Dunbar;
o Individuals in the finance and the program accounting departments;
o Everyone at IHCDA who contributes their time to ensure that the Audit goes smoothly.

f. IHCDA administered the Rental Assistance Fund and the Emergency Solutions Grants during an emergency
situation.

g. Both of these programs were implemented from scratch in days, along with creating new policies and
procedures, locating a software system, deploying resources, taking public comments from partners and all
hands on deck.
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h. J. Sipe recognized the dedication of IHCDA employees and thanked its partners, such as, not-for-profits,
community action agencies, homeless providers, the CoC and other partners that were involved in providing
services throughout all 92 counties.  These industry leaders are the backbone that allows IHCDA to implement
its programs.

a. Housing is one thing but creating quality of place in communities is another thing during a time when people
are at home and are not able to go out and integrate into their community.

b. However, IHCDA was able to create places through its CreatINg places program was largely successful.
c. Out of the 25 programs launched last year, 24 were successful in leveraging local donations to meet their goals

so that IHCDA was able to provide them matching funds.
d. Those 24 projects represented every type of community, from smaller communities to larger communities across

the state.
e. This showed the dedication and caring that people had for their communities and their willingness to make

investments no matter how small so that they will have a quality place to go in their community.
a. Regarding the homeownership department, in the Single-family mortgage bond market, IHCDA was hitting all

cylinders last year with record volume in the housing market, while almost everyone else was involved in rental
assistance programs

i. J. Sipe recognized Jeff Vannoy for putting together the Annual Report and Brad Meadows made it look nice.

2. American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
a. Homeowners Assistance Fund

i. Program will provide assistance to homeowners who are past due on their mortgages.
ii. The program will also provide utility assistance.

iii. Indiana will receive almost $168M .
iv. IHCDA is designated to administer the program for the state.
v. IHCDA is working with the state of Indiana regarding an important deadline to submit

documentations.
vi. All funds need to be expended by September 30, 2025.

vii. IHCDA is receiving additional guidance from the U.S. Department of Treasure and is continuing to
develop its priorities and policies and listen to its key stakeholders across the state.

b. Home Investment Partnerships Fund for Homeless Assistance and Supportive Service Program
i. IHCDA is going to be receiving just under $55M.

ii. In addition, there are municipalities, these larger cities which are called participating jurisdictions
will be receiving direct allocations as well.

iii. The largest is the City of Indianapolis which will receive under $15M.
iv. The smallest is around the size of East Chicago which will receive about $1M.
v. These funds can be used for developing affordable housing and providing tenant-based rental

assistance.
vi. All funds must be obligated by September of 2025 and expended by September of 2030.

c. Low-Income Housing Water Assistance Program/U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
i. IHCDA will be deploying a new program called the low-income housing water assistance program or

LYWOP.
ii. The program will provide assistance to households, renters and homeowners for drinking water and

water cost.
iii. IHCDA is not aware of the amount of funding that Indiana will receive.
iv. IHCDA will be the lead agency administering the low-income housing water assistance program for

the state of Indiana.
v. IHCDA has documents that must be completed, executed and submitted to the U.S Department of

Health and Human Services by next Tuesday.
vi. All funds must be obligated by September of 2023 and expended by December of 2023.

3. April’s IHCDA Board Meeting Location:
a. The next Board meeting is on May 27th at 10 a.m. and it will be a virtual Board Meeting.

VI. Other Business

There being no further business, a motion was made by Andy Place, Sr. to adjourn the meeting, which was seconded by J. 
June Midkiff; the motion passed unanimously, and the meeting was adjourned at 10:56 a.m.   
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Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Lieutenant Governor, Suzanne Crouch, or her designee 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________ 
J. Jacob Sipe 
Executive Director for IHCDA 
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Jodi Golden (May 28, 2021 09:03 EDT)
Jodi Golden
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INDIANA HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
RENTAL HOUSING TAX CREDIT (RHTC) PROGRAM 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY 
2020A-B Bond Round 

 

PROJECT NAME: Meadows on Main 

SITE LOCATION: 3863 South Main Street 
Whitestown, IN 46075 

PROJECT TYPE: New Construction 
PROJECT DESIGNATION: Multi-family 

APPLICANT: Kittle Property Group, Inc. 

PRINCIPALS: Jeffrey L. Kittle Trust 

# OF UNITS AT EACH SET ASIDE UNIT MIX 
70% of AMI: 91 Efficiency: 0 
60% of AMI: 107 One bedroom: 72 
50% of AMI: 41 Two bedroom 108 
40% of AMI: 25 Three bedroom: 68 
30% of AMI: 0 Four bedroom: 16 
Market Rate:     0 Total: 264 

TOTAL PROJECTED COSTS: $53,049,270 
TAX CREDITS PER UNIT: $9,223.48 

CREDIT REQUESTED: $2,435,000 
CREDIT RECOMMENDED: $2,435,000 
BOND VOLUME REQUESTED: $35,000,000 
BOND VOLUME RECOMMENDED: 
DEVELOPMENT FUND REQUESTED: 
DEVELOPMENT FUND RECOMMENDED: 

$35,000,000 
$0 
$0 

APPLICANT NUMBER: 2020A-B-012 
BIN NUMBER: 
DEVELOPMENT FUND LOAN NUMBER: 

IN-21-02000 
N/A 

SELF SCORE: 51.75 
IHCDA SCORE: 53 

5
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RESOLUTION OF THE 
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

CONCERNING THE ISSUANCE OF 
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE NOTE 
(MEADOWS ON MAIN PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, the Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority (the 
“Authority”) is a public body corporate and politic of the State of Indiana (the “State”), created 
and existing under the authority of Title 5, Article 20, Chapter 1, of the Indiana Code, as amended 
(the “Act”).  The Indiana General Assembly in 1978 found and declared to be a matter of legislative 
determination and made further findings that (i) there has existed in the State a need for safe and 
sanitary residential housing within the financial means of low and moderate income persons and 
families, a need which if unmet, is a threat to the health, safety, morals, and welfare of State 
residents and which will require an excessive expenditure of public funds for the social problems 
thus created; (ii) private enterprise and investment is more adequately able to produce the needed 
construction of decent, safe, and sanitary residential housing at prices or rentals which persons and 
families of low and moderate income can afford, or to achieve the urgently needed rehabilitation 
of much of the present low and moderate income housing; (iii) the provision of decent, safe, and 
sanitary housing for persons and families of low and moderate income who would otherwise be 
unable to obtain adequate housing at costs they could afford is a valid public purpose for which 
public moneys may be spent; and (iv) the provision of money for mortgage loans through the 
issuance of mortgage-backed bonds, notes, or other securities will assist in meeting the needs 
identified in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in a case challenging the constitutionality of the Act, the State Supreme Court 
has determined that the Act comports with the constitution of both the State and the United States 
of America and that the financing of housing for persons and families of low and moderate income 
pursuant to the Act is a valid and constitutional public purpose; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority has all the powers necessary or convenient 
to make or participate in the making of construction loans to sponsors of multiple family residential 
housing; and 

WHEREAS, Meadows on Main, LP, an Indiana limited partnership (the “Borrower”) 
submitted application materials and other information to the Authority and has requested that the 
Authority make a loan to the Borrower (the “Loan”) through the issuance of revenue bonds or 
notes to assist in the financing of the acquisition, construction, improving, and equipping of 
privately owned real and personal property to be comprised of a multifamily housing complex, 
located or to be located at 3863 South Main Street, Whitestown, Indiana, containing 264 affordable 
living units (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Act specifically empowers the Authority to issue revenue notes and 
refunding notes and make loans of the proceeds thereof in order to carry out and effectuate its 
purposes, the payment of principal of and interest on such revenue notes or refunding notes to be 

I\16001424.2 
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paid solely from the revenues derived from operations and loan repayments of a development and 
in no manner from the general funds of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority staff has reviewed the application materials and other 
information submitted by the Borrower and has made a recommendation to the Executive Director 
and a determination that the Project is eligible for financing with a Loan; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has also requested that the Authority authorize the potential 
issuance of refunding revenue notes, if desirable to the Authority as directed by the Borrower (the 
“Refunding Notes,” and with the hereinafter defined 2021 Notes, the “Notes”), the proceeds 
thereof, if any, to be loaned to the Borrower (the “Refunding Loan,” and with the Loan, the 
“Loans”) to be used for the refunding and redemption of the Notes following the placed in service 
date of the Project in order to refinance the Project, (the “Refunding Transaction”) through the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation’s Tax-Exempt Loan program; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority staff has completed its review of the Project and the Executive 
Director, based upon the Authority staff analysis, has recommended that the Authority make the 
Loans to the Borrower with respect to the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the Authority staff analysis and recommendation 
of the Executive Director and has determined that the Project meets the requirements of the Act 
and the rules and regulations of the Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the Authority staff analysis and recommendation 
of the Executive Director and has determined that the potential Refunding Transaction will be 
beneficial and convenient and meets the requirements of the Act and the rules and regulations of 
the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue, initially, its Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Notes, Series 2021 (Meadows on Main Project) (the “2021 Notes”), and subsequently 
and if desirable, its Refunding Notes to assist in financing and potential refinancing the Project, 
which revenue notes will not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the State of Indiana or the 
Authority or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State of Indiana or the Authority, but shall be 
payable solely from the revenues of the Project and loan repayments made to the Authority by the 
Borrower;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE INDIANA HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT:  

1. The legislative findings of the Indiana General Assembly itemized in IC 5-20-1-1, 
Section 1 of the Act hereby are ratified and confirmed and it is specifically found that:  

(a) there continues to exist in the State a need for safe and sanitary residential housing 
within the financial means of low and moderate income persons and families, a need which if 
unmet is a threat to the health, safety, morals and welfare of Indiana residents and which will 
require an excessive expenditure of public funds for social programs thus created;  
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(b) private enterprise and investment continue to be able to more adequately produce 
the needed construction of adequate, safe and sanitary residential housing at prices which persons 
and families of low and moderate income can afford or to achieve the urgently needed 
rehabilitation of the present low and moderate income housing, and that private enterprise and 
investment be encouraged to sponsor, build and rehabilitate residential housing for such persons 
and families;  

(c) the provision of decent, safe and sanitary housing for persons and families of low 
and moderate income who would otherwise be unable to obtain adequate housing at a cost they 
could afford continues to be a valid purpose for which public moneys may be spent; and  

(d) there exists a need in the State to stimulate the residential housing industry.  

2. The Authority hereby makes the following additional findings and determinations 
in connection with the Loans to be made by the Authority with proceeds of the Notes to assist in 
the financing or refinancing of the Project:  

(a) The Loans to the Borrower pursuant to a Project Loan Agreement (as defined 
herein) accomplish the purposes of the Authority by permitting the Borrower to provide decent, 
safe and sanitary housing for persons and families of low and moderate income who would 
otherwise be unable to obtain adequate housing at a cost they could afford;  

(b) Based upon representations made and information presented by the Borrower: 

(i) There exists a need for continued safe and sanitary housing within the 
financial means of persons and families of low and moderate income and within the general 
housing market area to be served by the proposed Project; 

(ii) The financing and refinancing of the Project will assist private enterprise 
and investment in providing decent, safe, and sanitary residential housing at rentals which 
persons of low and moderate income can afford; 

(iii) The Borrower will supply well-planned, well-designed residential housing 
for persons of low and moderate income; 

(iv) The Borrower is financially responsible; and 

(v) The proposed Project will be of public use and will provide a public benefit. 

3. The issuance and sale by the Authority of the Notes in one or more series and the 
use of the funds therefrom to make the Loans to the Borrower to finance and refinance a portion 
of the costs of the Project in accordance with the Act are hereby determined to be consistent in all 
respects with the purposes for which the Authority was created and exists. 

4. The Authority hereby authorizes the making of the Loans to the Borrower with 
proceeds of the Notes with respect to the Project.  The Project Loan Agreement shall include 
conditions requiring the Borrower to comply with all provisions of the Act and the rules and 
regulations of the Authority and any other requirements deemed necessary or appropriate by the 
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Executive Director and the Authority staff.  The interest rate with respect to the Loans, the 
estimated total development cost of the Project and the initial principal amounts of the Loans, 
together with terms and conditions applicable to any equity contribution by the Borrower or its 
limited partners, assurances of successful completion and operational stability of the Project, 
procedures for the determination of the total development costs and the final principal amounts of 
the Loans, the terms and amortization requirements of the Loans, related matters and terms and 
conditions shall be as set forth in the Project Loan Agreement. 

5. To further the purposes of the Authority under the Act, the Authority hereby 
authorizes and ratifies the issuance of its 2021 Notes and, subsequent to the issuance of the 2021 
Notes, if desirable, its Refunding Notes, in one or more taxable or tax-exempt series or sub-series, 
each in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed Thirty-Nine Million Nine Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($39,900,000) (provided that federally tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
shall be limited to a principal amount of $35,000,000), each issued as fixed rate notes or variable 
rate notes bearing interest at a rate not to exceed eight percent (8%) and maturing no later than 
forty (40) years from the date of issue.  The Authority hereby authorizes and ratifies: 

(i) the issuance of the Notes pursuant to a separate Funding Loan Agreement 
among the Authority, Lake City Bank and The Huntington National Bank, as fiscal agent 
(the “Fiscal Agent”) to be selected by the Borrower (the “Funding Loan Agreement”) for 
each series of the Notes, each Funding Loan Agreement substantially in the form of the 
Funding Loan Agreement presented to this meeting; 

(ii) the loan of the proceeds of the Notes by the Authority to the Borrower 
pursuant to the terms of the Funding Loan Agreement and a separate Project Loan 
Agreement among the Authority, Fiscal Agent and the Borrower (the “Project Loan 
Agreement”) for each series of the Notes, each Project Loan Agreement substantially in 
the form of the Project Loan Agreement presented to this meeting; 

(iii) the sale and delivery of the Notes; 

(iv) the regulation of the Project pursuant to one or more Regulatory 
Agreements substantially in the form presented to this meeting, among the Authority, 
Fiscal Agent and the Borrower (the “Regulatory Agreement”); and 

(v) the use of the proceeds received from the sale of the Notes in accordance 
with the terms of the Project Loan Agreement, as applicable to the Notes, and in accordance 
with the Act and the applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”). 

6. The Authority hereby approves the substantially final forms of the Funding Loan 
Agreement, the Project Loan Agreement and the Regulatory Agreement (all such foregoing 
documents referred to collectively as the “Note Documents”).  The forms of the Note Documents 
presented hereby are substantially final forms and the Authority hereby authorizes the Chair, the 
Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer (the “Authorized Officers”), or any one of them 
individually, with the advice of counsel to the Authority, to execute and deliver the Note 
Documents to which they are a party with such changes in form or substance as may be necessary 
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or appropriate to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution as shall be approved by the 
Authorized Officers, such approvals to be conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof or 
certification as applicable, and to take such further actions necessary or appropriate to approve the 
sale and issuance of the Notes, such approvals to be conclusively evidenced by their execution of 
the Notes. 

7. The Authority hereby delegates to the Authorized Officers the authority to execute 
and deliver the Note Documents provided that any of the Authorized Officers acting alone is 
authorized and has full power to execute and deliver the Note Documents, as appropriate, and 
hereby authorizes the Authorized Officers to take such further actions necessary and appropriate 
to approve the sale and issuance of the Notes.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Refunding 
Notes require additional volume cap pursuant to Section 146 of the Code, further approval of the 
Authority board shall be required. 

8. The Authority authorizes each of the Authorized Officers to execute such other 
documents and to take any and all other actions on behalf of the Authority as may be necessary or 
appropriate to carry out and implement the purposes of this Resolution, including the execution 
and delivery of any certificates or other agreements in connection therewith.  Any Authorized 
Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Notes by manual or facsimile signature 
pursuant to the Funding Loan Agreement and to direct the Fiscal Agent thereunder to authenticate 
the Notes, and to contract for a book-entry-only registration system for all or any portion of the 
Notes. 

9. The Authority hereby agrees to cooperate with the Borrower in establishing 
documentation sufficient to provide for post-issuance compliance with respect to the Notes under 
the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  Any one of the Authorized Officers is 
hereby specifically authorized and empowered to execute and deliver such certificates and enter 
into such agreements concerning such post-issuance compliance. 

*  *  *  *  * 
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APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of April, 2021, in Indianapolis, Indiana.   

 
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

By: __________________________________ 
 Suzanne Crouch, Chair, or her designee 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Kelly Mitchell, Vice Chair, or her designee  
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Dan Huge, Public Finance Director of the State 

of Indiana, or his designee  
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Thomas K. McGowan - Board Member 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Andy Place, Sr. – Board Member 

By:__________________________________ 
J. June Midkiff – Board Member 

By:__________________________________ 
G. Michael Schopmeyer – Board Member 

ATTEST:

_______________________________
J. Jacob Sipe, Executive Director 
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RESOLUTION OF THE
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

CONCERNING THE ISSUANCE OF
INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS, 2021 SERIES B  

WHEREAS, the Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority (the 
"Authority") is a public body corporate and politic of the State of Indiana (the "State"), created 
and existing under the authority of Title 5, Article 20, Chapter l, of the Indiana Code, as amended 
(the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS, the Indiana General Assembly in 1978 found and declared to be a matter of 
legislative determination and made further findings that (i) there has existed in the State a need for 
safe and sanitary residential housing within the financial means of low and moderate income 
persons and families, a need which if unmet, is a threat to the health, safety, morals, and welfare 
of State residents and which will require an excessive expenditure of public funds for the social 
problems thus created; (ii) private enterprise and investment is more adequately able to produce 
the needed construction of decent, safe, and sanitary residential housing at prices or rentals which 
persons and families of low and moderate income can afford, or to achieve the urgently needed 
rehabilitation of much of the present low and moderate income housing; (iii) the provision of 
decent, safe, and sanitary housing for persons and families of low and moderate income who would 
otherwise be unable to obtain adequate housing at costs they could afford is a valid public purpose 
for which public monies may be spent; and (iv) the provision of money for mortgage loans through 
the issuance of mortgage-backed bonds, notes, or other securities will assist in meeting the needs 
identified in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in a case challenging the constitutionality of the Act, the State Supreme Court 
has determined that the Act comports with the constitution of both the State and the United States 
of America and that the financing of loans for persons and families of low and moderate income 
pursuant to the Act is a valid and constitutional public purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously adopted a 2016 Amended and Restated 
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2016, (as thereafter supplemented from time to time, the 
"Indenture"), between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
Trustee (the "Trustee"), pursuant to which it has previously issued its Single Family Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously adopted the Home First Indenture of Trust dated 
as of December 1, 2009, (as thereafter supplemented from time to time, the "Home First 
Indenture"), between the Authority and the Trustee, pursuant to which it has previously issued its 
Home First Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series A (the "2011A Bonds"), its Home First 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series B (the "2011B Bonds") and its Home First Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series C (the "2011C Bonds" and together with the 2011A Bonds and the 
2011B Bonds,  the "Prior Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority may choose to refund all or a portion of the Prior Bonds; and 

EXHIBIT C
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WHEREAS, the Act specifically empowers the Authority to issue refunding obligations 
for the purpose of redeeming any obligations the Authority has outstanding, including the payment 
of any redemption premium thereon and any interest accrued or to accrue to the date of redemption 
of such obligations; and  

WHEREAS, the Indenture authorizes the Authority to redeem all or a portion of the Prior 
Bonds from moneys attributable to prepayments of mortgage loans, excess funds under the 
Indenture, certain other revenues of the Authority and the proceeds of the sale of refunding bonds; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Authority, prior to the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds (defined 
herein), has implemented the Single Family Mortgage Program (the "Program") and desires to 
continue to finance and refinance the acquisition of single-family housing for persons and families 
of low and moderate income, and to issue one or more series of single-family mortgage revenue 
bonds to carry out the Program and the operations of the Authority in connection with the Program, 
all in accordance with the Act and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has decided to issue bonds in order to strengthen the Program, 
to reduce interest expense, to provide housing incentives needed by persons and families of low 
and moderate income and to obtain funds at marketable costs in order to fulfill the public purposes 
of the Program and the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to structure a financing whereby additional bonds will 
be issued under the Indenture to carry out the Program and to refund all or a portion of the Prior 
Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act and Indiana Code 8-9.5-9-5 (the "Swap 
Act") to enter into interest rate swap agreements and related documents to hedge its interest rate 
risk with respect to all or a portion of its bonds (the "Swap Agreements"); and  

WHEREAS, the Authority may enter into the Swap Agreements and provide for the 
payment and security of obligations of the Authority thereunder in accordance with the Indenture; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize and direct its officers and staff to solicit 
proposals for, and enter into, the Swap Agreements, subject to the further provisions of the Act, 
the Swap Act, the Indenture and this Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE INDIANA HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT:

1. The legislative findings of the Indiana General Assembly itemized in I.C. 5-20-1-
1, Section 1 of the Act hereby are ratified and confirmed and it is specifically found that:

(a) there continues to exist in the State a need for safe and sanitary residential 
housing within the financial means of low and moderate income persons and families, a 
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need which if unmet is a threat to the health, safety, morals and welfare of Indiana residents 
and which will require an excessive expenditure of public funds for social programs thus 
created;

(b) private enterprise and investment continue to be able to more adequately 
produce the needed construction of adequate, safe and sanitary residential housing at prices 
which persons and families of low and moderate income can afford or to achieve the 
urgently needed rehabilitation of the present low and moderate income housing; and 

(c) the provision of decent, safe and sanitary housing for persons and families 
of low and moderate income who would otherwise be unable to obtain adequate housing 
at a cost they could afford continues to be a valid purpose for which public monies may be 
spent. 

2. The Program and the issuance and sale by the Authority of its Single Family 
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series B (the "2021 Series B Bonds"), in one or more series or 
sub-series, on a taxable or tax-exempt basis and the use of the proceeds therefrom to refund all or 
a portion of the Prior Bonds and to provide financing for the purchase of qualifying mortgage loans 
(the "Mortgage Loans") and the provision of down payment assistance in accordance with both 
the Act and the Program are hereby determined to be consistent in all respects with the purposes 
for which the Authority was created and exists. 

3. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution, the Authority hereby authorizes any 
one or all of the following:   

(a) the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds pursuant to the Program, in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed One Hundred Fifty Million Dollars 
($150,000,000), in one or more series, pursuant to the Indenture as supplemented by a 2021 
Series B Supplemental Indenture between the Authority and the Trustee (together, the 
"2021 Series B Indenture");  

(b) the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds as bonds the interest on which is 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes or the issuance of the 2021 
Series B Bonds as bonds the interest on which is includable in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, or a combination thereof;  

(c) the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds, with a yield to maturity not to 
exceed 8% per annum if issued as fixed rate obligations or with an initial interest rate not 
to exceed 8% per annum if issued as variable rate obligations;  

(d) the refunding of all or a portion of the Prior Bonds with certain of the 
proceeds of the 2021 Series B Bonds and the funding of Mortgage Loans in the manner 
consistent with the Program;  

(e) the offering and sale of the 2021 Series B Bonds pursuant to a Preliminary 
Official Statement and an Official Statement (or in the case of a private placement, 
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Preliminary Private Placement Memorandum and a final Private Placement 
Memorandum); 

(f) the sale and delivery of the 2021 Series B Bonds pursuant to one or more 
Bond Purchase Agreements (together, the "Purchase Agreement") between the Authority 
and the underwriters selected by an Authorized Officer (as defined herein);  

(g) the sale of the 2021 Series B Bonds to provide for the financing of the 
operation of the Program and the making of new Mortgage Loans in accordance with the 
requirements of the Act, the Indenture, the Code and the Program, subject to the approval 
of the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer 
(individually, an "Authorized Officer"), consistent with the terms of this Resolution; 

(h) the proceeds of the 2021 Series B Bonds to be deposited into the accounts 
and in the amounts set forth in the 2021 Series B Indenture; and 

(i) the 2021 Series B Bonds may be issued in one or more series or sub-series, 
each of which may consist of serial and term bond maturities, including a planned 
amortization bond structure.

4. In connection with the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds, the Authority approves 
entry into one or more Swap Agreements, subject to the further provisions of this Resolution, and 
authorizes any Authorized Officers of the Authority to solicit proposals for, to approve the final 
provisions of, and to enter into, for and on behalf of the Authority, each Swap Agreement. 
Approval of the final provisions of the Swap Agreements, if any, shall be evidenced by their 
execution of such Swap Agreements. The aggregate amount of bonds related to the Swap 
Agreements shall not exceed $150,000,000.  

The Swap Agreements shall be in the International Swap Dealers Association forms for 
similar arrangements, including such schedules, credit support annexes, or confirmations as 
supplemented and amended to accommodate the terms and conditions of (i) the 2021 Series B
Bonds, (ii) the Indenture and (iii) this Resolution.  

5. A. The 2021 Series B Bonds shall be issued pursuant to the following 
documents presented at this meeting:  (i) the 2021 Series B Indenture, (ii) the Bond Purchase 
Agreement related to the Authority’s 2021 Series B Bonds; (iii) a Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking of the Authority, and (iv) the Official Statement for the 2021 Series B Bonds 
(collectively, the "Bond Documents").  The Authority hereby approves such forms of the Bond 
Documents.   

          B. The Authority hereby authorizes any Authorized Officer of the Authority, 
with the advice of counsel to the Authority, to finalize the Bond Documents, with such changes in 
form or substance as may be necessary or appropriate to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution 
as shall be approved by any Authorized Officer of the Authority, such approvals to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution thereof or certification as applicable, and to take such further actions 
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necessary or appropriate to approve the sale and issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds, such 
approvals to be conclusively evidenced by their execution of the 2021 Series B Bonds.

6. The Authority hereby delegates to any Authorized Officer of the Authority the 
authority to execute and deliver the Bond Documents, provided that any Authorized Officer acting 
alone is authorized and has full power to execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement and hereby 
authorizes any Authorized Officer of the Authority to take such further necessary actions to 
approve the sale and issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds. 

7. The Preliminary Official Statement or Statements (or Preliminary Private 
Placement Memorandum, as the case may be) of the Authority with respect to the offering, 
issuance, and sale of the 2021 Series B Bonds authorized pursuant to this Resolution (collectively, 
the "Preliminary Official Statement") are hereby (i) authorized and approved in the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement presented at this meeting, as the same may be modified and 
amended pursuant hereto, for distribution as the Preliminary Official Statement of the Authority, 
(ii) authorized to be deemed and determined by an Authorized Officer, on behalf of the Authority, 
as of the respective date thereof, to constitute the "final" official statement of the Authority with 
respect to the 2021 Series B Bonds offered thereby, subject to completion as permitted by and 
otherwise pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "SEC Rule"), and (iii) authorized and 
approved, consistent with the provisions of the Purchase Agreement and the SEC Rule, to be 
placed into final form and distributed and delivered to underwriters of the 2021 Series B Bonds 
and offered thereby as the final official statement of the Authority, as of the date thereof, with 
respect to the 2021 Series B Bonds (the "Official Statement"). 

8. The finalization of the Official Statement by an Authorized Officer is hereby 
authorized, subject to the provisions of this Resolution. 

9. The Authority hereby represents and covenants that it will cause to be delivered to 
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (the "Senior Manager"), copies of the Official Statement in sufficient 
numbers and within sufficient time from the date of the execution of the Purchase Agreement 
authorized hereby in order to facilitate compliance with the SEC Rule, and the Authority further 
authorizes any Authorized Officer of the Authority to enter into such further agreements and to 
make such further certifications and representations as will evidence or effect compliance with the 
SEC Rule pursuant to the provisions hereof. 

10. U.S. Bank, National Association (the "Master Servicer") will purchase Mortgage 
Loans from participating lenders, pool the Mortgage Loans and issue or cause to be issued the 
mortgage-backed securities of either the Government National Mortgage Association (the "GNMA 
Certificates") or Fannie Mae (the "Fannie Mae Certificates") for sale to the Authority under the 
2021 Series B Indenture.  Mortgage Loans securing GNMA Certificates will have an interest rate 
not to exceed 9.00% and GNMA Certificates will have a pass-through interest rate not to exceed 
8.50%.  Mortgage Loans securing Fannie Mae Certificates will have an interest rate not to exceed 
9.00% and Fannie Mae Certificates will have a pass-through interest rate not to exceed 8.50%.  
Mortgagors will be charged an amount not to exceed 2.25% of the principal amount of the 
Mortgage Loan as origination points. 
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11. The Authority hereby approves a contribution of available Authority funds, in an 
amount not to exceed (i) $2,000,000 for the payment of certain initial costs and expenses in 
connection with the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds, the refunding of a portion of the Prior 
Bonds and the implementation of the Program, including duly authorized costs of issuance, plus 
(ii) such amounts, if any, as the Authority may be required to set aside in order to satisfy any 
condition of any rating agency with respect to the rating of the 2021 Series B Bonds. Further, the 
Authority approves the use of funds held under the Indenture to finance Mortgage Loans to provide 
additional leverage for the 2021 Series B Bonds in an amount approved by an Authorized Officer
if an Authorized Officer determines such contribution to be structurally desirable. In accordance 
with the foregoing, the Executive Director and the staff of the Authority are hereby directed to 
finance and implement the Program in the manner provided by the Act and the Indenture, and 
consistent with the provisions of this Resolution and the provisions of Section 143 of the Code and 
the regulations applicable thereto and promulgated pursuant thereto or under predecessor tax 
provisions (the "Regulations"), without affecting the excludability from gross income of interest 
received or accrued on the 2021 Series B Bonds and the Prior Bonds.

12. Any Authorized Officer of the Authority and the staff of the Authority, together 
with Bond Counsel and the Senior Manager are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all 
actions as are necessary, appropriate, or advisable in pursuance of the Program, including the 
issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds and the refunding of all or a portion of the Prior Bonds, 
including without limitation, the following: the structuring of the Program to identify and 
accommodate the needs of the Program to the greatest possible extent; the preparation of all 
necessary program documents, program rules, and financing documents and instruments relating 
to the Program, the issuance of the 2021 Series B Bonds; the refunding of all or a portion of the 
Prior Bonds; and the undertaking of all actions necessary and appropriate in arranging for (i) the 
possible collateralization of the Mortgage Loans to be financed out of the proceeds of the 2021 
Series B Bonds, or other possible credit enhancement with respect to such Mortgage Loans or the 
2021 Series B Bonds and (ii) in obtaining the highest possible credit rating for the 2021 Series B 
Bonds from the rating agency or agencies as the financing team, in consultation with the Chair, 
the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer of the Authority, shall deem to be necessary 
or appropriate. 

13. Any Authorized Officer of the Authority is authorized to execute and deliver such 
other agreements and documents and to take any and all other actions on behalf of the Authority 
as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out and implement the purposes of this Resolution and 
to carry out and implement the Program, including, without limitation: (i) amendments to the 
Program Guide in connection with the Program; (ii) selection, approval of and execution of 
liquidity facilities, including, but not limited to, standby bond purchase agreements, 
reimbursement agreements and credit enhancement facilities; and (iii) one or more investment 
contracts authorized pursuant to the Indenture for investment of the proceeds of the 2021 Series B
Bonds and any other proceeds made available as a result of the issuance thereof pending their 
application for the purposes of the Program.  Any Authorized Officer of the Authority is hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the 2021 Series B Bonds by manual or facsimile signature 
pursuant to the Indenture and to direct the Trustee thereunder to authenticate the 2021 Series B
Bonds, and to contract for a book-entry-only registration system for all or any portion of the 2021 
Series B Bonds. 
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14. The Authority hereby directs any Authorized Officer to take any and all actions and 
not to fail to take any action necessary or appropriate to preserve the excludability of interest 
received or accrued on the 2021 Series B Bonds and the Prior Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, including without limitation to the following: 

(a) To establish accounting procedures which determine the excess arbitrage 
earnings allocable to such bonds and to rebate such excess earnings to the United States; 

(b) To purchase only Mortgage Loans which qualify under the provisions of the 
Program for purchase by the Authority; 

(c) To invest the funds of the Authority attributable to the 2021 Series B Bonds 
only in such amounts and at such yields as will not jeopardize the excludability of interest 
received or accrued on the 2021 Series B Bonds or the Prior Bonds from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes; and 

(d) To operate the Program in accordance with the Code, the Regulations, the 
Indenture, and the 2021 Series B Indenture.

15. The Authority hereby covenants to use its best efforts to establish procedures and 
documentation sufficient to ensure that interest paid or accrued on the 2021 Series B Bonds and 
the Prior Bonds will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
the Code and the Regulations.  Any Authorized Officer of the Authority is hereby specifically 
authorized and empowered to deliver such certificates and enter into such agreements concerning 
the Authority’s compliance with existing, pending, or proposed federal tax legislation as they may, 
on the advice of counsel, deem appropriate and advisable. 
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APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of April, 2021.

INDIANA HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

 
 
 

By: __________________________________ 
 Suzanne Crouch, Chair, or her designee
 
 
By:__________________________________
 Kelly Mitchell, Vice Chair, or her designee 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Dan Huge, Public Finance Director of the State 

of Indiana, or his designee  
 
 
By:__________________________________
 Thomas K. McGowan - Board Member
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
 Andy Place, Sr. – Board Member

By:__________________________________ 
J. June Midkiff – Board Member 

By:__________________________________ 
G. Michael Schopmeyer – Board Member

ATTEST:

_______________________________
J. Jacob Sipe, Executive Director 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Indiana Housing and Community 
Development Authority (Authority), a component unit of the State of Indiana, as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority, as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in its financial position 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, in 2020.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to the 
matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and the schedules of the Authority’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability and the Authority’s contributions as listed in the table of contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying supplementary 
information, including the combining schedule of net position, combining schedule of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position and combining schedule of cash flows, as listed in the table of 
contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.   

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our 
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated April 15, 
2021, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
April 15, 2021 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis of the Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority’s 
(Authority) financial performance provides an overview of the financial activities for the year ended 
December 31, 2020.  This information is being presented to provide additional information regarding the 
activities of the Authority.  The management’s discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with 
the independent auditors’ report, financial statements and accompanying notes.  Notes to the financial 
statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information 
contained within the financial statements. 

Introduction - The Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority  

The Authority was created in 1978 as a public body corporate and politic of the State of Indiana 
(the State).  The Authority is entirely self-supporting and does not draw upon the general taxing 
authority of the State.  The Authority has been given certain powers, including the power to enter 
into contracts and agreements, acquire, hold and convey property, and issue notes and bonds, for 
the purpose of financing residential housing for persons and families of low and moderate income.  
The Authority’s funding comes from a variety of sources, including sales of its own securities to 
private investors, grants from the Federal government, program fees, investment interest earnings 
and interest earned on loan portfolios.  

The Authority’s financial statements include the operations of funds the Authority has established 
to achieve its purpose.  The financial transactions of the Authority are recorded in the funds that 
consist of a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred 
inflows and outflows of resources, net position, revenues and expenses as appropriate.  The 
Authority follows enterprise fund reporting.  The Authority is considered a component unit of the 
State and is discretely presented in the State’s financial statements. 

This discussion and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial 
issues and activities and to identify any significant changes in financial position of the Authority.  
Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented in conjunction with the financial 
statements, which follow this section. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements include the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows.  These statements provide 
current and long-term information about the Authority and its activities.  

The Statement of Net Position answers the question, “How was our financial health at the end of 
the year?”  This statement provides information about the financial position of the Authority at a 
specific date.  The organization of the statement separates assets and liabilities into current and 
noncurrent balances.  The statement shows the totals of assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting method used by most private-sector companies.  Over time, 
changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Authority is improving or deteriorating.  
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the success of the Authority’s 
operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether the Authority has successfully 
recovered all of its costs through mortgages and loans, externally funded programs and other 
revenue sources.  This statement also helps answer the question “Is the Authority as a whole better 
off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  

The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about the 
Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments during the accounting period.  This statement reports 
cash transactions, including receipts, payments, and net changes resulting from operations, 
noncapital financing, capital financing and investing activities.  It provides answers to such 
questions as “Where did the cash come from?”; “What was the cash used for?” and “What was the 
change in cash balance during the reporting period?”  

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the entity-wide financial statements.  

The financial statements present the activities of the Authority’s General Fund, Program Fund, 
Single Family Fund, Home First Fund, and the Mortgage Backed Security Pass-thru Fund.  See 
Note 1 for a complete description of each of these funds. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Financial Highlights 

The following is a comparative analysis between years for the Statements of Net Position: 

2019
2020 As Restated(1) Change % Change

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted  $        136,510,326  $         82,683,384  $          53,826,942 65%
Restricted            245,482,131           130,482,237            114,999,894 88%

Accrued interest receivable
Investments                   309,327                  614,851                 (305,524) -50%
Investments held against bonds                1,446,942               1,636,488                 (189,546) -12%

Accounts and loan receivable, net              22,550,961             29,163,355              (6,612,394) -23%
Other assets                     95,207                  732,427                 (637,220) -87%

Total current assets            406,394,894           245,312,742            161,082,152 66%

Noncurrent Assets
Investments

Unrestricted              88,076,514           139,385,256            (51,308,742) -37%
Restricted              33,315,285             31,194,379                2,120,906 7%

Investments held against bonds            515,615,657           553,307,036            (37,691,379) -7%
Accounts and loans receivable, net              98,912,210             88,535,010              10,377,200 12%
Capital assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation                   922,580               1,347,277                 (424,697) -32%
Lease assets, less accumulated amortization                5,378,022               5,995,414                 (617,392) -10%

Total noncurrent assets            742,220,268           819,764,372            (77,544,104) -9%
Total assets         1,148,615,162        1,065,077,114              83,538,048 8%

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension-related                   763,588                  566,728                   196,860 35%
Accumulated decrease in fair value of derivative                2,872,898               1,506,830                1,366,068 91%
Deferred refunding costs                1,319,199               1,665,260                 (346,061) -21%

Total deferred outflows of resources                4,955,685               3,738,818                1,216,867 33%

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources  $     1,153,570,847  $    1,068,815,932  $          84,754,915 8%

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
     and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Bonds payable  $          15,195,000  $         12,945,000  $            2,250,000 17%
Accrued interest payable                7,003,353               5,680,928                1,322,425 23%
Unearned revenue              39,466,853             34,476,408                4,990,445 14%
Government advances                   568,269                  589,629                   (21,360) -4%
Lease liability                   419,981                  387,806                     32,175 8%
Accounts payable and other liabilities              12,679,837             13,608,128                 (928,291) -7%

Total current liabilities              75,333,293             67,687,899                7,645,394 11%

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable            541,317,638           509,028,522              32,289,116 6%
Original issue premium              17,335,947               9,050,381                8,285,566 92%

Bonds payable, net            558,653,585           518,078,903              40,574,682 8%
Notes payable                1,619,401               1,692,476                   (73,075) -4%
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap agreements                2,872,898               1,506,830                1,366,068 91%
Pension liability                3,091,072               3,381,741                 (290,669) -9%
Government advances              31,817,297             31,679,065                   138,232 0%
Lease liability                5,161,528               5,581,508                 (419,980) -8%

Total noncurrent liabilities            603,215,781           561,920,523              41,295,258 7%
Total liabilities            678,549,074           629,608,422              48,940,652 8%

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension-related                   685,552                  542,452                   143,100 26%

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets                   719,093               1,373,377                 (654,284) -48%
Restricted            246,709,696           220,310,309              26,399,387 12%
Unrestricted            226,907,432           216,981,372                9,926,060 5%

Total net position            474,336,221           438,665,058              35,671,163 8%

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of  resources and net position  $     1,153,570,847  $    1,068,815,932  $          84,754,915 8%
 

(1) – The 2019 financials have been restated to reflect the adoption of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB No. 87), as of January 1, 2020.  See Note 3 
for further information.  
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by $84.8 million or 8 percent.  Total 
current assets increased $161.1 million while the noncurrent assets decreased by $77.5 million for 
the net increase in total assets of $83.5 million.  Total deferred outflow of resources increased by 
$1.2 million.   

The overall increase in total assets was related to the net change in cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments of $81.9 million.  The breakdown was comprised of:  Single Family $151.3 million 
offset by Home First of $84.6 million and MBS Pass Thru of $14.1 million and Federal Program of 
$29.5 million offset by General Fund of $0.2 million.  The Federal Program Fund increase of $29.5 
million; primarily made up of the increases in Hardest Hit Fund of $17.1 million and Coronavirus 
Relief Fund of $5.8 million related to additional program funding, TCAP of $15.9 million cash 
from loan repayments; and the net $52.6 million in mortgage bond programs due to proceeds from 
the two new bonds issuance net of bond repayments and redemptions.  The remainder included a 
net increase in receivables of $3.8 million associated mostly with the new down payment loan 
programs.     

The increase in the deferred outflows of resources was primarily due to the adjustment in the fair 
value of the 2017 Series B-3 and 2017 Series C-3 interest rate swaps of $1.4 million and the 
increase in the deferred pension costs of $0.2 million offset by the decrease in the amortization of 
the deferred refunding costs of $0.4 million. 

There were also increases in total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of $49.1 million or 
8%, comprised of current liabilities of $7.6 million, noncurrent liabilities of $41.3 million, and 
deferred inflows of resources of $0.1 million.  The overall net increase in liabilities is primarily 
related to bonds payable plus associated premiums of $42.8 million, accrued interest payable of 
$1.3 million, unearned revenues for federal programs of $5.0 million, and derivative instrument of 
$1.4 million.   

The increase in the deferred outflow of resources was due to the increase in deferred pension 
revenues of $0.1 million. 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources by $474.3 million at December 31, 2020.  This increased $35.7 million or 8% between 
years.  The Authority maintained financial strength throughout 2020 as the importance of housing 
remained a focus of Hoosiers during the pandemic. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Total net position at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of dollars): 

2019
2020 As Restated(1)

Assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,153.6$             1,068.8$            
Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 679.2                  630.2                 

Net position 474.4$                438.6$               

 
(1)  – The 2019 financials have been restated to reflect the adoption of GASB No. 87 as of  

January 1, 2020.  See Note 3 for further information. 

Operating Analysis 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position:  

2019
2020 As Restated(1) Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $             5,576,727  $           9,211,243  $       (3,634,516) -39%
Investments held against bonds 20,819,589              19,810,825           1,008,764           5%
Loans 1,874,218                1,051,990             822,228              78%

Fee income 5,880,664                5,046,064             834,600              17%
Program income 440,154,437            377,950,395         62,204,042         16%
Gain on sale of Next Home investments 9,830,782                5,275,676             4,555,106           86%
Net increase in fair value of investments 10,245,139              19,907,400           (9,662,261)         -49%
Other income 1,648,598                546,105                1,102,493           202%

Total revenues             496,030,154           438,799,698          57,230,456 13%

Expenses

Investment expense (down payment 
assistance) 8,764,650                8,164,116             600,534              7%

Loss on sale of investments 1,355,761                1,599,906             (244,145)            -15%
Interest expense 17,650,656              16,310,853           1,339,803           8%
Issuance costs 1,883,868                1,209,470             674,398              56%
Program expenses 409,673,121            360,162,344         49,510,777         14%
General and administrative expenses 21,030,935              20,109,428           921,507              5%

Total expenses             460,358,991           407,556,117          52,802,874 13%

Change in Net Position 35,671,163              31,243,581           4,427,582           14%

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as 
previously reported             438,665,058           407,437,523          31,227,535 8%

Change in Accounting Principle                                -                  (16,046)                 16,046 0%

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated             438,665,058           407,421,477          31,243,581 8%

Net Position, End of Year  $         474,336,221  $       438,665,058  $      35,671,163 8%

 
(1)  – The 2019 financials have been restated to reflect the adoption of GASB No. 87 as of  

January 1, 2020.  See Note 3 for further information. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

In 2020, total operating revenues were $496.0 million.  This was comprised of federal and state 
program income of $440.2 million, interest income of $28.3 million, gains on the sale of Next 
Home mortgages of $9.8 million, a net increase in the fair value of investments of $10.2 million, 
and $7.5 in fee and other income.  This compares to $438.8 million of total operating revenues in 
2019.  The overall increase in revenue of $57.2 million is mostly due to an increase in program 
income of $62.2, gain on sale of Next Home investments of $4.6 million, fee and other income of 
$1.9 million offset by a reduction in interest income of $1.8 million and the net decrease in fair 
value of investments of $9.7 million. 

The breakdown of the increase in program income primarily related to the new Coronavirus Relief 
Fund for rental assistance of $47.3 million along with increases of $9.6 million for Section 8 
Housing Assistance Payments Program (Section 8 Project-Based Cluster), $9.6 million for the 
Emergency Housing Disaster Relief Fund, $6.7 million for Community Development Block Grants 
- Disaster, $1.5 million for the Home Investment Partnerships Program, $1.0 million for the 
Emergency Solutions Grant, $1.2 million for the Emergency Housing Disaster Relief Fund, $0.7 
million for the Community Services Block Grant inclusive of Cares Act monies, $0.5 million for 
the Continuum of Care Program Transitional Housing Program offset by the decrease of $11.9 in 
the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program and the decrease of $3.2 million in the 
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons.    

Total operating expenses in 2020 were $460.4 million, which includes $409.7 million of federal 
and state program expenses, $17.7 million of interest expense on bonds, $21.0 million of general 
and administrative expense, $8.8 million in down payment assistance, $1.9 million in issuance 
costs and $1.4 million loss on the sale of investments. 

This compares to $407.6 million of total operating expenses in 2019.  The overall decrease of $52.8 
million was primarily due to the increase of $49.5 million in program expense between the years, 
which correlated to the increase in program income, down payment assistance increased by $0.6 
million, offset by the loss on sale of investments of $0.2 million.  General and administrative costs 
also increased $0.9 million, primarily due to the shift and additional costs associated with the new 
rental assistance program coupled with new bond issuances. There were increases in both interest 
expense of $1.4 million and issuance costs of $0.7 million.  

The breakdown in the program expense increase was also primarily attributable to the new 
Coronavirus Relief Fund for rental assistance of $45.4 million along with increases of $9.6 million 
for Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program (Section 8 Project-Based Cluster), $6.7 
million for Community Development Block Grants – Disaster, $1.8 million for the Emergency 
Housing Disaster Relief Fund, $1.5 million for the Home Investment Partnerships Program, $0.6 
million for the Emergency Solutions Grant, $0.6 million for the Community Services Block Grant 
inclusive of Cares Act monies,  $0.5 million for the Continuum of Care Program Transitional 
Housing Program offset by the decrease of $11.9 million in the Low-Income Home Energy 
Assistance Program and the decrease of $3.4 million in the Weatherization Assistance for Low-
Income Persons.    
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Total operating income/change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses 496.0$             438.8$             
Operating expenses 460.4               407.6               

Operating income/change in net position 35.6$               31.2$               
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools (GASB No. 31) requires the 
Authority’s investments to be reported at fair value.  The change in the fair value of investments is 
an unrealized gain or loss and has no direct effect on actual cash flows of the Authority.  The 
related adjustment should be tempered with the understanding that the underlying assets primarily 
are not readily marketable due to their relationship with the bond indentures.  The change in net 
position is shown both with and without the GASB No. 31 adjustment below.  In the current year, 
there was a net increase of $10.2 million in the net fair value of investments held at year end.  
Without the GASB No. 31 adjustment, the change in net position for 2020 was $25.4 million, 
resulting in a net increase in the change in net position of $14.1 million between years.  

2020 2019 Change % Change

Change in net position 35,671,163$    31,243,581$    4,427,582$       14%
Net increase in fair value of investments 10,245,139      19,907,400      (9,662,261)       -49%

Change in net position excluding 
GASB No. 31 adjustment 25,426,024$    11,336,181$    14,089,843$     124%
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position for the IHCDA General Fund: 

2019

2020 As Restated(1) Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $          2,163,048  $          3,346,088  $       (1,183,040) -35%

Fee income              5,880,664              5,044,564               836,100 17%
Program income              9,627,062                             -            9,627,062 100%
Gain on sale of investments              9,830,782              5,131,058            4,699,724 92%
Net increase in fair value of investments                 271,614                 445,233              (173,619) -39%
Other income              1,648,598                 546,105            1,102,493 202%

Total revenues            29,421,768            14,513,048          14,908,720 103%

Expenses

Investment expense (down payment 
assistance)              7,054,474              3,583,200            3,471,274 97%

Loss on sale of investments                 394,318                 342,725                 51,593 15%
Interest expense                 104,872                 349,065              (244,193) -70%
Program expenses              1,802,277                   60,196            1,742,081 2894%
General and administrative expenses              4,034,319              6,351,228           (2,316,909) -36%

Total expenses            13,390,260            10,686,414            2,703,846 25%

Operating Income            16,031,508              3,826,634          12,204,874 319%

Transfers

Interfund transfers               (557,817)               (317,615)              (240,202) 76%

Change in Net Position            15,473,691              3,509,019          11,964,672 341%

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as 
previously reported          107,991,942          104,498,969            3,492,973 3%

Change in Accounting Principle                             -                 (16,046)                 16,046 -100%

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated          107,991,942          104,482,923            3,509,019 3%

Net Position, End of Year  $      123,465,633  $      107,991,942  $      15,473,691 14%

 
(1)  – The 2019 financials have been restated to reflect the adoption of GASB No. 87 as of  

January 1, 2020.  See Note 3 for further information. 

In 2020, total operating revenues for the General Fund were $29.4 million.  This was comprised of 
gains on the sale of Next Home investments of $9.8 million, fees and other income of $7.5 million, 
interest income of $2.2 million, program income of $9.6 million, and an increase in the fair value 
of investments of $0.3 million. This compares to $14.5 million of total operating revenues in 2019.  
The overall increase in revenue of $14.9 million is mostly attributable to the program income of 
$9.8 million, gains on the sales of Next Home mortgages of $4.7 million, other income of $1.1 
million consisting of multi-family bond reservations, and fee income of $0.8 million.  These were 
offset by the decrease in interest income of $1.2 million and the fair value of investments of $0.2 
million.  
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Total operating expenses for the General Fund in 2020 were $13.4 million, which includes $7.1 
million in down payment assistance, $4.0 million of general and administrative expenses, $0.5 
million in loss on sale of investments and interest expense, and $1.8 million in program expenses.  
This compares to $10.6 million of total operating expenses in 2019.  Total operating expenses 
increased by $2.7 million due to an increase in down payment assistance of $3.5 million and a $1.7 
million increase in Emergency Housing Disaster Relief program expense offset by a decrease in 
general and administrative expenses of $2.4 million between years. 

There were $0.6 million and $0.3 million in inter-fund transfers into the Federal Programs Fund in 
2020 and 2019, respectively.  These transfers represented funding support for the administration of 
some of the federal and state programs. 

Total General Fund change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses  $               29.4  $               14.5 
Operating expenses                   13.4                   10.7 

Operating income                   16.0                     3.8 
Interfund transfers                   (0.6)                   (0.3)

Change in net position  $               15.4  $                 3.5 
 

 
The change in net position is shown both with and without the GASB No. 31 adjustment below.  In 
the current year, there was a net increase of $0.3 million in the net fair value of investments held at 
year end.  Without the GASB No. 31 adjustment, the change in net position for 2020 was $15.2 
million resulting in a net increase in the change in net position of $12.1 million between years.  The 
increase between years is attributable to additional program income of $9.6 million, Next Home net 
income of $1.2 million, fee and other income of $1.9 million, and the decrease of $2.3 in general 
and administrative expense reduction and the decrease in interest income of $1.2 million minus the 
interfund transfer out increase of $0.2 million.  There was a shift of cost from the General Fund to 
the Federal Program Fund to focus on the administration of coronavirus relief programs. 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Change in net position  $     15,473,691  $       3,509,019  $   11,964,672 341%
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments              271,614              445,233           (173,619) -39%

Change in net position without 
GASB No. 31 adjustment  $     15,202,077  $       3,063,786  $   12,138,291 396%
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position for the IHCDA Program Fund:  

2020 2019 Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $                 86,991  $           219,480  $          (132,489) -60%
Loans                1,874,218            1,051,990               822,228 78%

Fee income                               -                   1,500                  (1,500) -100%
Program income            430,527,375        377,950,395          52,576,980 14%

Total revenues            432,488,584        379,223,365          53,265,219 14%

Expenses

Interest expense                   246,595                 17,625               228,970 1299%
Program expenses            407,670,793        360,089,409          47,581,384 13%
General and administrative expenses              15,411,845          12,451,040            2,960,805 24%

Total expenses            423,329,233        372,558,074          50,771,159 14%

Operating Income                9,159,351            6,665,291            2,494,060 37%

Transfers

Interfund transfers                   557,817               317,615               240,202 76%

Change in Net Position                9,717,168            6,982,906            2,734,262 39%

Net Position, Beginning of Year            134,907,169        127,924,263            6,982,906 5%

Net Position, End of Year  $        144,624,337  $    134,907,169  $        9,717,168 7%

 
 

In 2020, total operating revenues for the Program Fund were $432.5 million.  This was primarily 
comprised of federal and state program revenues of $430.5 million and interest income of $2.0 
million.  This compares to $379.2 million of total operating revenues in 2019.  The overall increase 
in revenue of $53.3 million is primarily related to the increase in the program income of $52.6 
million. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The majority of the net increase in program income was related to the new Coronavirus Relief 
Fund for rental assistance of $47.3 million with other increases of $9.6 million for Section 8 
Housing Assistance Payments Program (Section 8 Project-Based Cluster), $6.7 million for 
Community Development Block Grants - Disaster, $1.5 million for the Home Investment 
Partnerships Program, $1.0 million for the Emergency Solutions Grant, $0.7 million for the 
Community Services Block Grant inclusive of Cares Act monies, $0.5 million for the Continuum 
of Care Program Transitional Housing Program offset by the decreases of $11.9 in the Low-Income 
Home Energy Assistance Program and $3.2 million in the Weatherization Assistance for Low-
Income Persons. 

Total operating expenses for the Program Fund in 2020 were $423.3 million, which primarily 
includes $407.7 million in program expenses and $15.4 million of general and administrative 
expense.  This compares to $372.6 million of total operating expenses in 2019.  Total operating 
expenses increased by $50.8 million, which primarily consists of increases in program expense of 
$47.6 million, general and administrative expense of $3.0 million, and interest expense on capital 
leases of $0.2 million.  This increase in program expense correlates to the decrease in the 
discussion on program income. 

Total Program Fund change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses  $             432.5  $             379.2 
Operating expenses                 423.3                 372.6 

Operating income                     9.2                     6.6 
Interfund transfers                     0.6                     0.3 

Change in net position  $                 9.8  $                 6.9 
 

 
There was no GASB No. 31 adjustment made to the Authority’s Program Fund. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position for the IHCDA Single Family Fund: 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $        2,813,103  $        4,852,170  $       (2,039,067) -42%
Investments held against bonds          15,970,367          13,040,675            2,929,692 22%

Gain on sale of investments                           -               144,618              (144,618) -100%
Net increase in fair value of investments          11,320,223          14,301,737           (2,981,514) -21%

Total revenues          30,103,693          32,339,200           (2,235,507) -7%

Expenses

Investment expense (down payment 
assistance)            1,710,176            4,580,916           (2,870,740) -63%

Loss on sale of investments               841,486            1,164,365              (322,879) -28%
Interest expense          13,033,960          10,092,584            2,941,376 29%
Issuance costs            1,883,868            1,209,470               674,398 56%
Program expenses               200,051                 12,739               187,312 0%
General and administrative expenses            1,310,871               962,621               348,250 36%

Total expenses          18,980,412          18,022,695               957,717 5%

Operating Income (Loss)          11,123,281          14,316,505           (3,193,224) -22%

Transfers

Interfund transfers            2,412,377               274,322            2,138,055 779%

Change in Net Position          13,535,658          14,590,827           (1,055,169) -7%

Net Position, Beginning of Year        158,292,042        143,701,215          14,590,827 10%

Net Position, End of Year  $    171,827,700  $    158,292,042  $      13,535,658 9%

  

In 2020, total operating revenues for the Single Family Fund were $30.1 million, which primarily 
consists of interest income of $18.8 million and the impact of the GASB No. 31 adjustment to mark 
the investments to market of $11.3 million.  This compares to $32.3 million of total operating 
revenues in 2019.  The overall decrease in revenue of $2.2 million consists of the decrease in the 
GASB No. 31 adjustment of $3.0 million offset by an increase in interest income of $0.9 million.  

Total operating expenses for the Single Family Fund in 2020 were $19.0 million, which includes 
$13.0 million in interest expenses, $1.7 million in down payment assistance, $1.9 million in bond 
issuance costs, $1.3 million of general and administrative expense, $0.8 million in loss on sale of 
investments, and $0.2 million in bad debt expense on program loans.  This compares to 18.0 
million of total operating expenses in 2019.  Total operating expenses increased by $1.0 million, 
which correlates primarily to the $3.0 million in interest expense, bond issuance costs of $0.7 
million, general and administrative expenses of $0.3 million, bad debt expense of $0.2 million, 
offset by a decrease down payment assistance of $2.9 million and loss on sale of investments of 
$0.3 million. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

There were $2.4 million in inter-fund transfers out of the Single Family Fund in 2020, compared to 
$0.3 million in inter-fund transfers in 2019.  In 2020, this included $2.2 million from Home First 
Fund for mortgage redemptions and $0.2 million from MBS Pass Thru Funds for excess fees. 

Total Single Family Fund change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses  $              30.1  $              32.3 
Operating expenses                  19.0                  18.0 

Operating income                  11.1                  14.3 
Interfund transfers                    2.4                    0.3 

Change in net position  $              13.5  $              14.6 

 
 
The change in net position is shown both with and without the GASB No. 31 adjustment below.  In 
the current year, there was a net increase of $11.3 million in the net fair value of investments held 
at year end.  Without the GASB No. 31 adjustment, the change in net position for 2020 was $2.2 
million resulting in a net increase in the change in net position of $1.9 million between years.  The 
change between years is primarily attributable to the increase of the $2.1 million inter-fund 
transfers into the Single-Family Fund. 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Change in net position  $   13,535,658  $   14,590,827  $    (1,055,169) -7%
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments       11,320,223       14,301,737        (2,981,514) -21%

Change in net position without 
GASB No. 31 adjustment  $     2,215,435  $        289,090  $     1,926,345 666%
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position for the IHCDA Home First Fund: 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $           512,868  $           793,012  $          (280,144) -35%
Investments held against bonds 2,318,998           3,839,652           (1,520,654)         -40%

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of
investments (1,982,410)         3,830,107           (5,812,517)         -152%

Total revenues               849,456            8,462,771           (7,613,315) -90%

Expenses

Loss on sale of investments 119,957              92,816                27,141                100%
Interest expense 2,005,853           3,108,667           (1,102,814)         -35%
General and administrative expenses 260,900              332,539              (71,639)              -22%

Total expenses            2,386,710            3,534,022           (1,147,312) -32%

Operating Income (Loss)        (1,537,254)         4,928,749        (6,466,003)                      (1)

Transfers

Interfund transfers (2,193,746)         -                         (2,193,746)         100%

Change in Net Position           (3,731,000)            4,928,749           (8,659,749) -176%

Net Position, Beginning of Year          33,131,095          28,202,346            4,928,749 17%

Net Position,  End of Year  $      29,400,095  $      33,131,095  $       (3,731,000) -11%

 
 

In 2020, total operating revenues for the Home First Fund were $0.8 million, which consists of 
interest income of $2.8 million offset by the impact of the GASB No. 31 adjustment to mark the 
investments to market of $2.0 million.  This compares to $8.5 million of total operating revenues in 
2019.  The overall decrease in revenue of $7.6 million is related primarily to the impact of the 
GASB No. 31 decrease adjustment of $5.8 million and the reduced interest income of $1.8 million, 
which correlates to the reduction in investments held against bonds. 

Total operating expenses for the Home First Fund in 2020 were $2.4 million, which includes $2.0 
million in interest expenses, $0.3 million of general and administrative expense, and $0.1 million in 
loss on sale of investments.  This compares to $3.5 million of total operating expenses in 2019.  
Total operating expenses decreased by $1.1 million, which correlates primarily to the reduction of 
interest expense on the bonds. 

There were $2.2 million inter fund transfers out of the Home First related to bond redemptions into 
the Single-Family Fund in 2020.  No transfers were made in 2019. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Total Home First Fund change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses  $                0.8  $                8.5 
Operating expenses                    2.4                    3.5 

Operating income                   (1.6)                    5.0 
Interfund transfers                   (2.2)                        - 

Change in net position  $               (3.8)  $                5.0 
 

 
The change in net position is shown both with and without the GASB No. 31 adjustment below.  In 
the current year, there was a net decrease of $2.0 million in the net fair value of investments held at 
year end.  Without the GASB No. 31 adjustment, the change in net position for 2020 was $1.7 
million dollar loss resulting in a net decrease of $2.8 million between years.  The change between 
years is primarily attributable to the impact inter-fund transfers out of the Home First Fund of $2.2 
million and the negative impact of expenses exceeding revenues between years by $6.5 million.  

2020 2019 Change % Change

Change in net position  $    (3,731,000)  $     4,928,749  $    (8,659,749) -176%
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments        (1,982,410)         3,830,107        (5,812,517) -152%

Change in net position without 
GASB No. 31 adjustment  $    (1,748,590)  $     1,098,642  $    (2,847,232) -259%
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The following is a comparative analysis between years of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position for the IHCDA MBS Pass-thru Fund: 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $                  717  $                  493  $                  224 0%

Investments held against bonds            2,530,224            2,930,498              (400,274) -14%
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of

investments               635,712            1,330,323              (694,611) -52%
Total revenues            3,166,653            4,261,314           (1,094,661) -26%

Expenses

Interest expense            2,259,376            2,742,912              (483,536) -18%
General and administrative expenses                 13,000                 12,000                   1,000 8%

Total expenses            2,272,376            2,754,912              (482,536) -18%

Operating Income (Loss)               894,277            1,506,402              (612,125) -41%

Transfers

Interfund transfers              (218,631)              (274,322)                 55,691 -20%

Change in Net Position               675,646            1,232,080              (556,434) -45%

Net Position, Beginning of Year            4,342,810            3,110,730            1,232,080 40%

Net Position, End of Year  $        5,018,456  $        4,342,810  $           675,646 16%

 
 

In 2020, total operating revenues for the MBS Pass-Thru Fund were $3.2 million, which consists of 
interest income of $2.5 million and the impact of the GASB No. 31 adjustment to mark the 
investments to market of $0.6 million.  This compares to $4.3 million of total operating revenues in 
2019.  The overall decrease in revenue of $1.1 million is related to the combined impact of the 
negative GASB No. 31 adjustment of $0.7 million and the decreased interest income relative to the 
pay down of investments of $0.4 million.    

Total operating expenses for the MBS Pass-Thru Fund in 2020 were $2.3 million, which is 
primarily the $2.3 million in interest expenses.  General and administrative expenses were 
negligible.  This compares to $2.8 million of total operating expenses in 2019.  Total operating 
expenses decreased by $0.5 million, which correlates primarily to the reduction of interest expense 
on the bonds. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

There were $0.2 million inter-fund transfers out of the MBS Pass-Thru Fund in 2020 and $0.3 
million in 2019. 

Total MBS Pass-Thru Fund change in net position for 2020 and 2019 was as follows (in millions of 
dollars): 

2020 2019

Operating revenues, gains and losses  $                3.2  $                4.3 
Operating expenses                    2.3                    2.8 

Operating income                    0.9                    1.5 
Interfund transfers                   (0.2)                   (0.3)

Change in net position  $                0.7  $                1.2 
 

The change in net position is shown both with and without the GASB No. 31 adjustment below.  In 
the current year, there was a net increase of $0.6 million in the net fair value of investments held at 
year end.  Without the GASB No. 31 adjustment, the change in net position for 2020 was less than 
$0.1 million resulting in a net increase in the change in net position of $0.1 million between years.  
The change between years due to inter-fund transfers out of the MBS Pass Thru Fund was 
negligible.  The increase is attributable to positive impact of revenues exceeding expenses between 
years by $0.1 million. 

2020 2019 Change % Change

Change in net position  $        675,646  $     1,232,080  $       (556,434) -45%
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments            635,712         1,330,323           (694,611) -52%

Change in net position without 
GASB No. 31 adjustment  $          39,934  $         (98,243)  $        138,177 -141%

 
 

Financial Condition 

The Authority operates within financial policies and guidelines set by the members of its Board of 
Directors.  These guidelines require the Authority to maintain adequate liquid asset levels, good 
mortgage portfolio performance and a sufficient level of unrestricted assets.  Net position on 
December 31, 2020, consisted of $246.7 million restricted by funding sources, $227.0 million 
unrestricted and available to meet the obligations of the Authority’s operations, and $0.7 million 
net investment in capital assets.  Restricted net position increased $26.4 million or 12 percent, 
unrestricted net position increased $9.9 million or 5 percent, and the net investment in capital assets 
decreased $0.6 million or 48 percent. 

  

49 of 122



 

21 

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

The increase of $26.4 million in restricted net position was primarily due to the increase in Single 
Family bond indentures of $28.1 million, Federal Programs Fund of $1.4 million.  MBS Pass-thru 
Fund of $0.7 offset by reductions for Home First Fund of $3.7 million due to bond redemptions.  
The $9.9 million change in unrestricted net position was due to the increase in unrestricted assets 
for the General Fund of $16.1 million and Federal Programs of $8.4 million offset by the decrease 
in the Single-Family indenture of $14.5 million. 

The graph below illustrates the comparative distribution of the net position between the funds:  
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Capital and Lease Assets 

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Authority had $6.3 million and $7.3 million, respectively, 
invested in capital and lease assets, primarily the building, computer software and hardware.  
During fiscal year 2020, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 87, which resulted in leases 
being reported in accordance with GASB 87’s provisions.  The amounts presented in the financial 
statements have been restated to reflect adoption of this standard.  Depreciation and amortization 
expense was $1.0 million in 2020 and $1.1 million in 2019, respectively. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Debt Administration 

Total current and noncurrent bonds payable, not including any original issue premium or discount, 
as of December 31, 2020, was $556.5 million, which increased $34.5 million compared to $522.0 
million as of December 31, 2019.  This increase was due to the $140.0 million of maturities and 
redemptions of bonds previously issued by the Authority, offset against the $174.5 million in 
mortgage revenue bond issuances in 2020.  The Authority has maintained its long-term bond 
ratings of Aaa from Moody’s Investors Services and AAA from Fitch Ratings.  (The Home First 
Bond Indenture is only rated by Moody’s and the MBS Pass-Thru Indenture is only rated by Fitch.)  
More detailed information about the Authority’s debt is presented in Note 7 to the financial 
statements. 

The following new bonds were issued during 2020 (dollars in thousands): 

Tax-Exempt Taxable Moody's Fitch
Bond Series Amount Amount Total Rating Rating

2020 Series A  $          61,290  $                    -  $          61,290 Aaa AAA
2020 Series B            113,215                        -            113,215 Aaa AAA

Total  $        174,505  $                    -  $        174,505 
 

 

Economic Factors and Other Financial Information 

The primary business activity of the Authority is funding the purchase of single-family home 
mortgages and administering various federal programs.  The Authority’s mortgage financing 
activities are sensitive to the level of interest rates, the spread between the rate available on 
Authority loans and those available in the conventional mortgage markets and the availability of 
affordable housing.  The availability of long-term tax-exempt financing on favorable terms is a key 
element in providing the funding necessary for the Authority to continue its mortgage financing 
activities. 

The Authority’s single-family programs and investment income are the main sources of revenues.  
Market interest rates have an effect on both the single family program and investment income 
revenues.  If interest rates continue at current levels, the Authority expects single family and 
investment income to be stable.  If interest rates rise, the Authority expects single family and 
investment income to increase as new loans are originated and new investments are purchased at 
the higher rates.  If interest rates fall, the Authority expects single family and investment income to 
decrease as new loans are originated and new investments are purchased at the lower rates.  The 
Authority also expects a drop in market rates to cause an increase in prepayments on higher rate 
mortgages.  The Authority uses these prepayments to call the corresponding series bonds, which 
lowers the rate of return on those bond series.  
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

COVID-19 Impact 

Within the first few months of 2020, a novel strain of the coronavirus, SARS-OcV-2, and resulting 
disease, COVID-19, was reported in the United States, impacting the nation and the State.  The 
COVID-19 Pandemic is an ongoing situation.  At this time, the Authority cannot predict 1) the 
duration or extent of the COVID-19 Pandemic or any other outbreak emergency; 2) the duration or 
expansion of any foreclosure or eviction moratorium affecting the Servicer’s ability to foreclose 
and collect on delinquent mortgage loans; 3) the number of mortgage loans that will be in 
forbearance or default as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic and subsequent federal, state and 
local responses thereto, including the CARES Act; 4) whether and to what extent the COVID-19 
Pandemic or other outbreak or emergency may disrupt the local or global economy, real estate 
markets, manufacturing, or supply chain, or whether any such disruption may adversely impact the 
Authority or its operations; 5) whether or to what extent the Authority or other government 
agencies may provide additional deferrals, forbearances, adjustments, or other changes to payments 
on mortgage loans; or 6) the effect of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the State budget, or whether any 
such effect may adversely impact the Authority or its operations.  However, the continuation of the 
COVID-19 Pandemic and the resulting containment and mitigation efforts could have economic 
uncertainties arise which may negatively affect the financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows for the Authority, including the reduction of overall investment position.  The duration of 
these uncertainties and the ultimate financial effects continue to not be reasonably estimated at this 
time. 

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Indiana, our constituents and investors 
with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and resources.  If you have questions about this 
report or need additional financial information, contact the Chief Financial Officer at Indiana 
Housing and Community Development Authority, 30 South Meridian Street Suite 900, 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 or visit our website at www.in.gov/ihcda/. 

 
 
 
 
 

52 of 122



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

53 of 122



 

See Notes to Financial Statements 24 

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

2020

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted  $      136,510,326 
Restricted          245,482,131 

Accrued interest receivable
Investments                 309,327 
Investments held against bonds              1,446,942 

Accounts and loans receivable, net            22,550,961 
Other assets                   95,207 

Total current assets          406,394,894 

Noncurrent Assets
Investments

Unrestricted            88,076,514 
Restricted            33,315,285 

Investments held against bonds          515,615,657 
Accounts and loans receivable, net            98,912,210 
Capital assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation                 922,580 
Lease assets, less accumulated amortization              5,378,022 

Total noncurrent assets          742,220,268 
Total assets       1,148,615,162 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension-related                 763,588 
Accumulated decrease in fair value of derivatives              2,872,898 
Deferred refunding costs              1,319,199 

Total deferred outflows of resources              4,955,685 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources  $   1,153,570,847 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

2020

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Bonds payable  $        15,195,000 
Accrued interest payable              7,003,353 
Unearned revenue            39,466,853 
Government advances                 568,269 
Lease liability                 419,981 
Accounts payable and other liabilities            12,679,837 

Total current liabilities            75,333,293 

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable          541,317,638 
Original issue premium            17,335,947 

Bonds payable, net          558,653,585 
Notes payable              1,619,401 
Derivative instruments - interest rate swap agreements              2,872,898 
Pension liability              3,091,072 
Government advances            31,817,297 
Lease liability              5,161,528 

Total noncurrent liabilities          603,215,781 
Total liabilities          678,549,074 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension-related                 685,552 

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets                 719,093 
Restricted

Program fund          122,910,410 
Single Family fund            89,380,735 
Home First fund            29,400,095 
MBS Pass-thru fund              5,018,456 

Total restricted net position          246,709,696 
Unrestricted          226,907,432 

Total net position          474,336,221 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and net position  $   1,153,570,847 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

2020

Revenues
Interest income

Investments  $     5,576,727 
Investments held against bonds       20,819,589 
Loans         1,874,218 

Fee income         5,880,664 
Program income     440,154,437 
Gain on sale of Next Home investments         9,830,782 
Net increase in fair value of investments       10,245,139 
Other income         1,648,598 

Total revenues     496,030,154 

Expenses
Investment expense (down payment assistance)         8,764,650 
Loss on sale of investments         1,355,761 
Interest expense       17,650,656 
Issuance costs         1,883,868 
Program expenses     409,673,121 
General and administrative expenses       21,030,935 

Total expenses     460,358,991 

Change in Net Position       35,671,163 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as previously reported     438,864,646 

Change in Accounting Principle           (199,588)

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated     438,665,058 

Net Position, End of Year  $ 474,336,221 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts for services  $        16,688,571 
Receipts for program revenue 446,605,475        
Principal received on loans receivable 1,147                   
Interest received on investments 5,882,251            
Interest received on investments held against bonds 19,626,553          
Interest received on loans 1,874,218            
Payments for program expenses (425,857,737)       
Interest paid on bonds and bank loans (15,982,170)         
Debt issuance costs incurred            (1,883,868)
Investment expense            (1,710,176)
Payments for suppliers and employees          (12,131,424)

Net cash provided by operating activities            33,112,840 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Proceeds from bond issues          184,258,109 
Repayments and redemption of bonds and bank loans        (140,123,920)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities            44,134,189 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets                             - 
Payments on lease               (387,805)

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities               (387,805)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments            82,105,789 
Principal received on investments held against bonds          222,117,180 
Purchases of investments held against bonds        (174,452,276)
Purchase of investments          (34,002,100)
Purchase of DPA loans            (3,800,981)

Net cash provided by investing activities            91,967,612 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents          168,826,836 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1          213,165,621 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31  $      381,992,457 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash  $      138,468,485 
Money market investments          243,523,972 

Total cash and cash equivalents  $      381,992,457 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

2020

Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to Net Cash  
Provided by Operating Activities:

Change in net position  $        35,671,163 
Adjustment to reconcile change in net position to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Net increase in fair value of investments          (10,245,139)
Loss on sale of investments              1,355,761 
Depreciation              1,042,089 
Amortization of bond premium/discount            (1,382,582)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts and loan receivable                   36,175 
Accrued interest receivable                 495,070 
Other assets                 637,220 
Deferred pension costs               (196,860)
Deferred refunding costs                 346,061 
Unearned revenue              4,990,445 
Accounts payable and other liabilities               (928,291)
Accrued interest payable              1,322,425 
Net pension liability               (290,669)
Deferred pension revenue                 143,100 
Government advances                 116,872 

Total adjustments            (2,558,323)

Net cash provided by operating activities  $        33,112,840 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Note 1: Authorizing Legislation and Funds 

The Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority (the Authority) was created in 1978 
by an act of the Indiana Legislature (the Act).  The Authority has been given numerous powers 
under the Act, including the power to enter into contracts and agreements, acquire, hold and 
convey property and issue notes and bonds, for the purpose of financing residential housing for 
persons and families of low and moderate incomes. 

The powers of the Authority are vested by the Act in seven members who constitute the Board of 
Directors, four of whom are appointed by the Governor of Indiana and three of whom serve by 
virtue of holding other Indiana state offices.  The three ex-officio members are the Lieutenant 
Governor, the State Treasurer, and the Public Finance Director of the State of Indiana.  The 
Authority is considered a component unit of the State of Indiana and is discretely presented in the 
State’s financial statements. 

The Act empowers the Authority to (1) make or participate in the making of construction loans and 
mortgage loans to sponsors of federally assisted multi-family residential housing; (2) purchase or 
participate in the purchase from mortgage lenders, mortgage loans made to persons of low and 
moderate income for residential housing; and (3) make loans to mortgage lenders for the purpose of 
furnishing funds to be used for making mortgage loans to persons and families of low and 
moderate incomes.  The Act authorizes the Authority to issue its bonds and notes to carry out its 
purposes, and neither the Act nor the Bond Trust Indentures establish any limitation as to the 
aggregate amount of obligations which the Authority may have outstanding. 

The Authority’s financial statements include the operations of funds that the Authority has 
established to achieve its purposes under powers granted to it by the Act.  The financial 
transactions of the Authority are recorded in the funds which consist of a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, net position, revenues and expenses, as appropriate.  The Authority’s 
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which 
they are to be spent and the means by which financial activity is controlled.  The Authority’s funds 
are described below. 

General Fund 

The General Fund was established by the Authority to account for all fee income and charges that 
are not required to be recorded in other funds and for operating expenses of the Authority.   

Program Fund 

The Program Fund accounts for grant and loan activity related to various federal and state 
programs administered by the Authority.   
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Single Family, Home First and Mortgage-Backed Securities Pass-Thru Funds 

The Single Family, Home First and Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) Pass-thru funds are bond 
indentures which use bond proceeds to fund the Single Family Mortgage Programs (the Mortgage 
Programs). 

The Mortgage Programs provide for the purchase of mortgage loans made to eligible borrowers for 
owner occupied housing, which are then securitized into GNMA, FNMA or FHLMC certificates 
(collectively MBS).  Borrowers meeting certain income guidelines may qualify under the 
Authority’s down payment assistance programs. 

Commencing in June 1980, the Authority entered into mortgage purchase agreements with certain 
commercial banks, savings and loan associations and mortgage banking companies admitted to do 
business in the State of Indiana whereby the lenders agreed to originate mortgage loans on newly 
constructed and existing dwellings meeting criteria established by the Authority and to sell them to 
the Authority. 

 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The Authority accounts for all of its activity as a proprietary fund, 
which includes business-type activities that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The Authority’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, 
and expenses are recorded when incurred.   

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The Authority invests in various investment securities.  Investment securities are exposed to 
various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks.  Due to the level of risk associated with 
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the 
amounts reported in the accompanying statement of net position.  
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and on 
deposit and investments with a maturity of three months or less.   

Investment Securities 

The Authority reports its investments securities, including MBS, at fair value.  Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date.  Interest income is recorded on the accrual 
basis.  Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the specific-
identification method.  Changes in the fair value of investments are reported in the statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  

Following is a summary of the effects of valuing investment securities at fair value on total assets 
and deferred outflows of resources, net position and operating income as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2020: 

Fair Value Cost

General Fund  $      135,692,458  $      135,953,250 
Program Fund          227,792,855          227,792,855 
Single Family Fund          692,575,125          664,132,035 
Home First Fund            43,679,427            42,473,581 
MBS Pass-thru Fund            53,830,982            48,985,538 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources  $   1,153,570,847  $   1,119,337,259 

Fair Value Cost

General Fund  $      123,465,633  $      123,726,425 
Program Fund          144,624,337          144,624,337 
Single Family Fund          171,827,700          143,384,610 
Home First Fund            29,400,095            28,194,249 
MBS Pass-thru Fund              5,018,456                 173,012 

Total net position  $      474,336,221  $      440,102,633 

Outflows of Resources

Net Position

Total Assets and Deferred
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Fair Value Cost

General Fund  $        16,031,508  $        15,759,894 
Program Fund              9,159,351              9,159,351 
Single Family Fund            11,123,281               (196,942)
Home First Fund            (1,537,254)                 445,156 
MBS Pass-thru Fund                 894,277                 258,565 

Total operating income  $        35,671,163  $        25,426,024 

Operating Income

 

Accounts and Loans Receivable 

Accounts and loans receivable consist primarily of forgivable and non-forgivable loans made to 
sub-recipients as part of federal and state programs, forgivable loans provided to individuals for 
down payment assistance, and reimbursements due from other governments for amounts billed or 
billable for expenses incurred or services provided.  The Authority considers all forgivable loans to 
be uncollectible and reserves the entire balances in the allowance for uncollectible loans.  Any 
additional allowance for uncollectible accounts or loans is determined by periodic management 
review based upon historical losses, specific circumstances, and general economic conditions.  

Interfund Accounts and Transfers 

Funds are transferred from one fund to support expenses of other funds, including operating 
activities, bond issuances, and bond redemptions in accordance with authority established for the 
individual fund.  To the extent that certain transactions between funds are not paid or received in 
the current period, net interfund receivable and payable balances are recorded on the statement of 
net position at the end of the year. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.  The Authority capitalizes fixed 
asset purchases over $5,000.  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to ten years.   

Lease Assets 

At the commencement of the lease term, the Authority, as lessee, recognizes a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset in according with GASB 87.  The lease asset is amortized in a 
systematic and rational manner (straight-line method) over the shorter of the lease term or the 
useful life of the underlying asset. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The Authority reports the consumption of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period 
as deferred outflows of resources in a separate section of its Statement of Net Position.  The 
deferred outflows of resources in the current year are related to pension, debt refunding costs and 
the accumulated decrease in the fair value of hedging derivative instruments.  The deferred 
outflows of resources related to pension are for contributions made to the defined-benefit plan 
between the measurement date of the net pension liabilities from the plan and the end of the year.  
The debt refunding costs are being amortized over the life of the refunding bonds as a part of 
interest expense.  In addition, deferred outflows of resources include the fair value of interest rate 
swap agreements (see Note 8). 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The Authority’s Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources, which is an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  
Deferred inflows of resources are reported for actual pension plan investment earnings in excess of 
the expected amounts included in determining pension expense.  This deferred inflows of resources 
is attributable to pension expense over a total of ten years, including the current year. 

Compensated Absences 

In accordance with the vesting method provided under GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for 
Compensated Absences, accumulated vacation and personal time is accrued when earned by the 
employee and the accrual is based on assumptions concerning the probability that certain 
employees will become eligible to receive these benefits in the future.   

Risk Management 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction 
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural 
disasters and employee health and accident benefits.  Commercial insurance coverage is purchased 
for claims arising from such matters other than those related to workers’ compensation and natural 
disasters.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding 
years.  The state of Indiana self-insures workers’ compensation benefits for all state employees, 
including Authority employees.   

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue is reported in the financial statements.  The availability period does not apply; 
however, amounts may not be considered earned due to eligibility requirements or other reasons.  
As eligibility requirements are met, the corresponding revenue is recognized. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Cost-Sharing Defined-Benefit Pension Plan 

The employees of the Authority participate in the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS).  The 
Authority recognizes its proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension and pension expense.  
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources represent changes in the Authority’s allocated 
proportion from the previous year; differences between the Authority’s contributions to the Plan 
and its proportionate share, actual Plan investment earnings and expected amounts, and expected 
and actual experience on the Plan included in determining pension expense; and the impact of 
changes in assumptions on the net pension liability, all of which are being amortized into pension 
expense over the average expected remaining services life, except for the differences between 
expected and actual investment earnings, which is amortized over five years.  Deferred outflows of 
resources also includes contributions made to the Plan between the Plan’s measurement date for the 
net pension liability and the end of the Authority’s fiscal year.  

Interest Rate Swap Agreements 

The Authority uses interest rate swap agreements to protect against the potential of rising interest 
rates.  The agreements are reported at fair value on the Statement of Net Position; however, 
changes in fair value are deferred until the termination or expiration of the instruments.  The 
accumulated decrease in the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is reported as a deferred 
outflows of resources. 

Deferred Refunding Costs 

In 2012, the Authority issued 2012 series bonds under the MBS Pass-thru Fund, the proceeds from 
which were used to redeem bonds with an outstanding swap agreement.  As part of the swap 
termination upon the bond redemption, the Authority was required to pay swap termination fees of 
$9,114,000 to the counterparty.  The Authority capitalized amounts paid in connection with the 
swap termination fees and is amortizing the balance ratably in proportion to 2012 series redeemed 
during the year.  Accumulated amortization of refunding costs was $7,794,801 at December 31, 
2020, and amortization expense, which is reported as part of interest expense, was $346,061 for the 
year then ended.   

Original Issue Premiums and Discounts 

Original issue premiums and discounts on bonds are amortized using a method that approximates 
the effective interest method over the life of the bonds to which they relate. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Net Position 

The Authority’s resources are classified for accounting and financial reporting purposes into the 
following net position categories: 

 Net investment in capital assets - resources resulting from capital acquisition, net of 
accumulated depreciation. 

 Restricted - net position subject to externally imposed stipulations as to use.   

 Unrestricted - net position which are available for use of the Authority. 

Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Resources 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to 
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Overdraws of Section 8 Housing Assistance 

HUD Notice PIH 2006-03 and subsequent interpretive guidance issued by HUD requires Section 8 
voucher funds to be reported as restricted net position in the Financial Data Schedule filings.  
Therefore, the Authority includes Section 8 overdraws in net position as restricted.  

Operating Revenues 

The Authority records all revenues derived from mortgages, investment income and federal 
programs as operating revenues since these revenues are generated from the Authority’s daily 
operations needed to carry out its statutory purpose.  

Program Income 

Program income is recognized as earned as the eligible expenses are incurred or activities are 
completed.  Funding received in advance of being earned are recognized as unearned revenue.  
Program expenses are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, because of such 
audits, adjustments could be required. 

Fee Income 

Fees for Mortgage Credit Certificate and Mortgage Revenue Bond Programs are recorded as fee 
income in the General Fund as certificates are issued.  Rental Housing Tax Credit fees are 
recognized as applications are submitted.  The Authority also receives certain administrative fees 
for a federal grant program that are recorded as earned. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Allocation of Expenses Between Funds 

The Program, Single Family, Home First and MBS Pass-thru Funds provide that funds may be 
transferred to the General Fund for the purpose of paying reasonable and necessary program 
expenses. 

Income Taxes 

As an instrumentality of the state, the income of the Authority is exempt from federal and state 
income taxes under Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state 
law. 

 

Note 3: Adoption of GASB Statement No. 87 

During 2020, the Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Standard No. 87, Leases.  This statement requires governments to recognize certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  The adoption 
of GASB No. 87 resulted in decreases in beginning net position of $199,588 and capital assets of 
$609,492, and increases in lease assets of $5,995,414 and lease liabilities of $5,585,510 as of 
January 1, 2020.  Leases have been recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that 
existed at the beginning of the year.  Refer to Notes 6 and 10 for the additional disclosures on lease 
assets and leases. 

 

Note 4: Deposits and Investments 

MBS
General Program Single Family Home First Pass-Thru 2020

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Current
Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted  $   73,896,147  $   32,722,874  $   29,891,305  $                    -  $                    -  $      136,510,326 
Restricted                        -       96,478,621     134,642,751       14,300,117              60,642          245,482,131 

Total current cash and cash equivalents       73,896,147     129,201,495     164,534,056       14,300,117              60,642          381,992,457 

Noncurrent Assets
Investments

Unrestricted       33,969,407                        -       54,107,107                        -                        -            88,076,514 
Restricted                        -                        -       23,515,521         9,799,764                        -            33,315,285 

Investments held against bonds                        -                        -     443,798,143       19,503,583       52,313,931          515,615,657 
Total noncurrent investments       33,969,407                        -     521,420,771       29,303,347       52,313,931          637,007,456 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments  $ 107,865,554  $ 129,201,495  $ 685,954,827  $   43,603,464  $   52,374,573  $   1,018,999,913 
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Cash, cash equivalents and investments held by the Authority as of December 31, 2020 were as 
follows: 

Fair Value Cost

Deposits
Cash  $      138,468,485  $ 138,468,485 
Money market mutual funds          243,523,972     243,523,972 

Investments
Federal agency obligations          119,710,924     121,144,514 
Federal agency obligations held against bonds          515,615,657     479,929,353 
Municipal bonds              1,680,875         1,700,000 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments  $   1,018,999,913  $ 984,766,324 
 

 

Investment Policy 

General 

Indiana Code 5-20-1 authorizes the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States or any of 
its component states, or their agencies or instrumentalities and such other obligors as may be 
permitted under the terms of any resolution authorizing the issuance of the Authority’s obligations. 

Indentures 

The Bond Indentures permit investments in the direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, 
the United States or any of its component states, obligations issued by certain agencies of the 
Federal government, and investments collateralized by those types of investments.  At  
December 31, 2020, all investments held by the Authority were in compliance with the 
requirements of the Indentures.  

The Authority’s cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in 
more detail below. 

Interest Rate Risk  

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest 
rate.  The Authority’s investment policy does not restrict investment maturities.  As of  
December 31, 2020, the Authority had the following investments and maturities (in thousands): 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - 5 6 - 10 More Than 10

Money market mutual funds  $        243,524  $        243,524  $                    -  $                    -  $                    - 
Federal agency obligations            119,711                        -              42,067              63,570              14,074 
Federal agency obligations held against bonds            515,616                        -                   302                3,446            511,868 
Municipal bonds                1,681                        -                        -                        -                1,681 

 $        880,532  $        243,524  $          42,369  $          67,016  $        527,623 

Investment Maturities (in Years)
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Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its 
deposits, investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the 
counterparty fails.  Investment securities are exposed to risk if the securities are uninsured, are not 
registered in the name of the Authority, and are held by either the counterparty of the 
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Authority’s name.  As of December 31, 
2020, the Authority had not entered into any agreements subject to this paragraph. 

In 1937, the State created the Public Deposit Insurance Fund (PDIF) to protect the public funds of 
the state and its political subdivisions deposited in approved financial institutions.  The PDIF 
insures those public funds deposited in approved financial institutions, which exceed the limits of 
coverage provided by any federal deposit insurance.  As of December 31, 2020, all of the 
Authority’s cash was deposited in approved financial institutions. 

Credit Risk  

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The Authority’s policy for credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of 
Indiana statutes.  The following table provides information on the credit ratings associated with the 
Authority’s investments in debt securities:  

S&P Fitch Moody's Fair Value

Money market mutual funds AAAm AAAmmf Aaa-mf  $    243,523,972 
Federal agency obligations AA+ AAA Aaa        119,710,924 
Federal agency obligations held against bonds AA+ AAA Aaa        515,615,657 
Municipal bonds AAA N/A Aaa            1,680,875 

 $    880,531,428 
 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.  The following table 
shows investments in issuers that represent five percent or more of total investments. 

Investment Fair Value

Ginnie Mae 57.5%
Blackrock Federal Fund Institutional Money Market 15.6%
Small Business Administration 8.0%
Dreyfus Government Cash Management Institutional Money Market 7.2%

 
 

  

68 of 122



 

39 

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

Note 5: Accounts and Loans Receivable 

Accounts and loans receivable at December 31, 2020, were as follows: 

General Fund:
Loans provided to sub-recipients of certain programs 49,613$           
Next Home ownership mortgage down payment assistance loans 10,970,976      
Accounts receivable 1,165,553        
Mortgage loans 39,092             
FSSA receivable - Emergency Housing Disaster Relief Fund 6,719,860        

18,945,094      
Less:  allowance for uncollectible loans (11,030,039)     

7,915,055        
Current (7,875,963)       

Noncurrent 39,092$           

Single Family Fund 
Down payment assistance loans    4,255,806$      
Less:  allowance for uncollectible loans    (212,790)          

Noncurrent 4,043,016$      

    Program Fund:
Reimbursements due from other governments 14,059,539$    
Section 1602 tax credit exchange program loans 90,573,701      
Tax credit assistance program loans 150,000           
Rural rental housing loans 1,638,219        
Home investment partnership program loans 16,296,983      
Community development block grant loans 15,520,313      
Development fund loans 65,488,467      
Hardest hit fund loans 165,400,154    

369,127,376    
  Less:  allowance for uncollectible loans (259,622,276)   

109,505,100    
Current (14,674,998)     

Noncurrent 94,830,102$    
 

 
The section 1602 Tax Credit Exchange Program loans, the Hardest Hit Fund loans, and the Next 
Home Ownership Mortgage Down Payment Assistance (DPA) loans are forgivable, as long as 
borrowers comply with the provisions of the related agreements.  Therefore, these loans are 
included in the allowance for uncollectible loans.  Additionally, the Authority creates allowances 
for accounts and loans receivable to correspond with their perceived collectability.  The General 
Fund provides the up-front funding for the DPA loans initially, but the cash is reimbursed through 
the sale of the related securitized loans.  
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Note 6: Capital and Lease Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was: 

2020 December 31,
As Restated(1) Additions Disposals 2020

Computer software  $         7,621,445  $                        -  $                        -  $         7,621,445 
Computer hardware             1,135,048                            -                            -             1,135,048 

            8,756,493                            -                            -             8,756,493 
Less accumulated depreciation            (7,409,216) (424,697)             -                          (7,833,913)          

Capital assets, net  $         1,347,277  $           (424,697)  $                        -  $            922,580 
 

Lease assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was: 

January 1,
2020 December 31,

As Restated(1) Additions Disposals 2020

Building  $         5,409,827  $                        -  $                        -  $         5,409,827 
Furniture and equipment                585,587                            -                            -                585,587 

            5,995,414                            -                            -             5,995,414 
Less accumulated amortization -                          (617,392)             -                          (617,392)             

Leased assets, net  $         5,995,414  $           (617,392)  $                        -  $         5,378,022 
 

(1) – The beginning balance was restated for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87. 
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Note 7: Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable at December 31, 2020, consist of (dollars in thousands):  

Original
Single Family Fund Amount Balance

2016 Series A-1
Serial bonds (2.20% to 2.55%), due 2025 - 2027  $            8,220  $            8,220 
Term bonds (2.85%), due 2031              14,735              12,455 

             22,955              20,675 
2016 Series A-2

Serial bonds (1.75% to 2.50%), due 2021 - 2025              23,565              14,115 
PAC bonds (3.50%), due 2038              25,990              11,070 

             49,555              25,185 
2017 Series A-1

Serial bonds (1.95% to 3.15%), due 2021 - 2028                8,510                4,700 
Term bonds (2.60%), due 2026                7,355                7,355 
Term bonds (3.60%), due 2032                7,755                7,755 
Term bonds (3.85%), due 2035                6,380                2,265 

             30,000              22,075 
2017 Series A-2

PAC bonds (4.00%), due 2039              14,070                7,705 
             14,070                7,705 

2017 Series B-1
Serial bonds (1.50% to 2.75%), due 2021 - 2028              15,210              12,120 
Term bonds (3.25%), due 2032                6,790                6,485 

             22,000              18,605 
2017 Series B-2

PAC bonds (4.00%), due 2038              15,740              10,620 

2017 Series B-3
Term bonds (variable), due 2047              17,000              17,000 
Term bonds (variable), due 2047                6,000                6,000 

             23,000              23,000 
2017 Series C-1

Serial bonds (2.35% to 2.95%), due 2024 - 2028                7,355                7,355 
Term bonds (3.25%), due 2032                6,940                5,925 

             14,295              13,280 
2017 Series C-2

Serial bonds (2.15% to 2.50%), due 2021 - 2024                7,465                4,825 
PAC bonds (4.00%), due 2037              12,530                8,280 

             19,995              13,105 
2017 Series C-3

Term bonds (variable), due 2047              20,705              20,705 
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Original
Single Family Fund (Continued) Amount Balance

2018 Series A
Serial bonds (1.90% to 3.20%), due 2021 - 2029  $          14,480  $          12,780 
Term bonds (3.50%), due 2033                7,530                7,530 
Term bonds (3.80%), due 2038              11,495                6,080 
PAC bonds (4.00%), due 2048              20,590              18,910 

             54,095              45,300 
2019 Series A

Serial bonds (1.85% to 3.15%), due 2021 - 2030              11,165              10,405 
Term bonds (3.50%), due 2034                5,850                5,850 
Term bonds (3.85%), due 2039                9,165                9,165 
Term bonds (4.00%), due 2042                6,610                6,610 
PAC bonds (4.25%), due 2048              15,990              15,500 

             48,780              47,530 
2019 Series B

Serial bonds (1.15% to 2.25%), due 2021 - 2032              16,240              15,680 
Term bonds (2.40%), due 2034                3,420                3,420 
Term bonds (2.65%), due 2039                9,835                9,835 
Term bonds (2.85%), due 2042                6,135                6,135 
PAC bonds (3.50%), due 2049              17,845              17,705 

             53,475              52,775 
2020 Series A:

Serial bonds (1.00% to 5.00%), due 2021 - 2032              18,545              18,365 
Term bonds (2.55%), due 2035                6,060                6,060 
Term bonds (2.75%), due 2040              11,905              11,905 
Term bonds (2.85%), due 2042                4,295                4,295 
PAC bonds (3.75%), due 2049              20,485              20,485 

             61,290              61,110 
2020 Series B:

Serial bonds (1.15% to 5.00%), due 2025 - 2032              31,315              31,315 
Serial bonds (5.00%), due 2021 - 2025              12,715              12,715 
Term bonds (1.95%), due 2035              14,850              14,850 
Term bonds (2.05%), due 2039              21,355              21,355 
PAC bonds (3.25%), due 2049              32,980              32,980 

           113,215            113,215 

Total Single Family Fund  $        563,170  $        494,885 
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Original
Home First Fund Amount Balance

2011 Series A
Serial bonds (3.50% to 3.625%), due 2021  $            9,070  $               380 
Term bonds (4.45%), due 2027                7,430                2,600 
PAC bonds (4.50%), due 2028                7,500                   125 

             24,000                3,105 
2011 Series B

Serial bonds (3.15%), due 2021                8,825                   405 
Term bonds (4.00%), due 2027                7,675                2,825 

             16,500                3,230 
2011 Series C

Serial bonds (3.35% to 3.55%), due 2021 - 2022              26,325                2,790 
Term bonds (4.10%), due 2027                7,905                4,420 
PAC bonds (4.50%), due 2027              12,680                   615 

             46,910                7,825 

Total Home First Fund  $          87,410  $          14,160 
 

 
Original

MBS Pass-thru Fund Amount Balance

2012 Series 1
Term bonds (3.029%), due 2038  $          73,532  $          10,929 

2013 Series 1
Taxable term bonds (3.027%), due 2041              62,674              15,899 

2013 Series 2
Taxable term bonds (4.038%), due 2036              51,839              13,817 

2014 Series 1
Taxable term bonds (4.050%), due 2038              28,667                6,823 

Total MBS Pass-Thru Fund  $        216,712  $          47,468 

Total Bonds Payable  $        867,292  $        556,513 
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The Single Family, Home First and MBS Pass-thru bonds are special obligations of the Authority.  
The bonds are payable solely from the revenues and assets pledged to the payment thereof pursuant 
to the Bond Trust Indentures.  

The 2017 Series B-3 bond and 2017 Series C-3 bond mature on July 1, 2047, and the interest rate is 
the E-Pro Daily rate (0.11% at December 31, 2020). 

The following are the scheduled amounts of principal and interest payments on bond payable 
obligations in the five years subsequent to December 31, 2020 and thereafter (all amounts in 
thousands).  The Authority typically has significant prepayments of principal amounts and, 
therefore, does not expect to make all interest payments in their scheduled amounts. 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2021  $          12,955  $          14,620  $            2,240  $               547  $                  -  $               1,647  $               15,195  $          16,814 
2022              14,575              14,484                2,310                   468                      -                   1,647                   16,885              16,599 
2023              15,240              14,101                   940                   392                      -                   1,647                   16,180              16,140 
2024              15,845              13,675                1,205                   352                      -                   1,647                   17,050              15,674 
2025              16,500              13,181                2,655                   283                      -                   1,647                   19,155              15,111 

2026 - 2030              90,100              58,072                4,810                   227                      -                   8,233                   94,910              66,532 
2031 - 2035              93,090              45,364                        -                        -                      -                   8,233                   93,090              53,597 
2036 - 2040              95,270              31,033                        -                        -            31,569                   4,274                 126,839              35,307 
2041 - 2045              81,030              18,117                        -                        -            15,899                      438                   96,929              18,555 
2046 - 2049              60,280                3,928                        -                        -                      -                          -                   60,280                3,928 

           494,885            226,575              14,160                2,269            47,468                 29,413                 556,513            258,257 
Original issue premium              16,056                        -                     72                        -              1,208                          -                   17,336                        - 

 $        510,941  $        226,575  $          14,232  $            2,269  $        48,676  $             29,413  $             573,849  $        258,257 

Single Family Fund Home First Fund MBS Pass-thru Fund Total

 
 

The summary of bonds payable as of December 31, 2020 (dollars in thousands) was as follows: 

Payment
Interest Maturity Range

Rate Ranges Range of Principal Total

1.0 - 5.0% 2021 - 2049 $2,645 - $37,312  $           556,513 
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Changes in Obligations 

The following are changes in noncurrent liabilities of the Authority for the year ended  
December 31, 2020 (dollars in thousands): 

January 1,
2020 December 31, Due Within Due

As Restated(1) Additions Reductions 2020 One Year Thereafter

Bonds payable  $ 521,973,522  $ 174,505,000  $ 139,965,884  $    556,512,638  $   15,195,000  $ 541,317,638 
Premium         9,050,381         9,753,109         1,467,543          17,335,947                        -       17,335,947 
Note payable         1,692,476                        -              73,075            1,619,401                        -         1,619,401 
Net pension liability         3,381,741            328,095            618,764            3,091,072                        -         3,091,072 
Lease liability         5,969,314                        -            387,805            5,581,509            419,981         5,161,528 
Government advances       32,268,694            323,683            206,811          32,385,566            568,269       31,817,297 

Total long-term obligations  $ 574,336,128  $ 184,909,887  $ 142,719,882  $    616,526,133  $   16,183,250  $ 600,342,883 
 

 
(1) – The beginning balance was restated for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87. 

Due to the nature of the net pension liability, which cannot be classified into the amounts due 
within one year, is included in due thereafter, and as such the related balance is reflected as a long-
term obligation above. 

The Single Family and Home First bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions at various 
dates at 100 percent of the principal amount, extraordinary optional redemption at par from 
unexpended or uncommitted funds, prepayments of mortgage loans and proportionate amounts in 
certain related accounts or excess revenues.  The Authority redeemed $139,965,884 of bonds in 
2020 from mortgage loan payments and prepayments.  The bond redemptions resulted in write-offs 
of unamortized discount related to the redeemed bonds. 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

The Authority is authorized by law to issue conduit revenue bonds for the purpose of financing 
residential housing for persons and families of low and moderate income.  Except as described 
below, the Authority’s revenue bonds are payable solely from revenues of the Authority 
specifically pledged thereto.  The bonds are not, in any respect, a general obligation of the 
Authority, nor are they payable in any manner from revenues raised by the Authority. 
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The Authority has issued debt obligations on behalf of certain 501(c) (3) organizations (the 
Debtors) for the purpose of acquiring and rehabilitating facilities for housing persons of low and 
moderate income.  These bonds and the interest thereof do not constitute a debt or liability of the 
Authority, but are special obligations between investors and the Debtors payable solely from the 
payments received by the trustee under the loan agreements and meet the definition of conduit debt 
in GASB Interpretation No. 2, Disclosure of Conduit Debt Obligations.  Accordingly, the bonds 
are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.  At December 31, 2020, the 
Authority had outstanding conduit debt of $197,736,103. 

 

Note 8: Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Hedging Derivative Instruments 

The Authority entered into a swap arrangements with Bank of New York Mellon.  The objective of 
the swap agreements is to create, with respect to the 2017 Series B-3 Bonds in an amount totaling 
$17,250,000, and the 2017 Series C-3 Bonds in an amount totaling $15,525,000 an approximately 
fixed rate net obligation.  Payments made to the Counterparty by the Authority under this swap 
agreement are made semi-annually, on the basis of a notional principal amount and a fixed interest 
rate of 2.420% for 2017 Series B-3 and 2.495% for 2017 Series C-3.  Payments received by the 
Authority from the Counterparty under the swap agreement bear interest at a variable rate 
calculated by reference to the 3-Month LIBOR Swap Index.    

Objective of the Swap:  The Authority entered the pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap 
agreements as a strategy to maintain acceptable levels of exposure to the risk of future changes in 
the interest rate related to the existing variable rate debt.  The primary intention of the swap 
agreements is to effectively convert the Authority’s variable interest rates on its long-term debt to 
synthetic fixed rates. 

Terms, Fair Value and Credit Risk:  The terms, including, the fair value and credit rating of the 
outstanding swaps as of December 31, 2020, are as follows:   

Variable Swap Counterparty
Notional Effective Fixed Rate Fair Termination Credit Rating

Bond Series Amounts Date Rate Paid Received Value Date S&P/Moody's/Fitch

2017 Series B-3  $  17,250,000 1/1/2018 2.420% 70% 3 M LIBOR  $     (1,324,766) 7/1/2047 AA-/Aa2/AA
2017 Series C-3      15,525,000 7/1/2018 2.495% 70% 3 M LIBOR         (1,548,132) 7/1/2047 AA-/Aa2/AA

Total  $     (2,872,898)
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The Authority’s swap agreements contain scheduled reductions to outstanding notional amounts 
that are expected to approximately follow scheduled or anticipated reductions of the associated 
bonds.  

Fair Value:  The fair values of the swap agreements are based upon a third party’s discounted cash 
flow methodology pursuant to the guidance set forth in GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurement 
and Application.  These discounted cash flows consider the net present value of the future 
scheduled payments from each leg of the swap.  For the floating leg of the swap, future coupon 
rates are estimated based on forward rates derived from the relevant interest rate swap yield curve 
date (e.g., LIBOR, SIFMA, etc.) as of the valuation date.  The present value discounted factors 
applied to each future scheduled payment is determined by the LIBOR, or Overnight Index Swap, 
curve data using the zero-coupon method.  A credit valuation adjustment is applied, which 
quantifies the nonperformance risk of both reporting entity as well as the counterparty. 

The fair values of the swap agreements are classified as a noncurrent liability on the statement of 
net position of $2,872,898 as of December 31, 2020.  As the swap agreements are effective 
hedging instruments, the offsetting balance is reflected as a deferred outflow of resources on the 
Authority’s balance sheet at December 31, 2020 of $2,872,898.     

Credit Risk:  The fair value of each of the swap agreements represents the Authority’s credit 
exposure to the counterparties as of December 31, 2020.  Should the counterparties to these 
transactions fail to perform according to the terms of the swap agreements, the Authority has a 
maximum possible loss equivalent to the fair value at that date.  As of December 31, 2020, the 
Authority was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative fair value.  However, 
should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap agreement become positive, the 
Authority would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative instrument’s fair value.  
In the event that the credit ratings fall below the agreed upon threshold, the fair value of the swaps 
is to be fully collateralized with eligible securities (as defined in the Master Agreement) to be held 
by a third-party custodian on behalf of the Authority. 

Basis Risk:  The swap agreements expose the Authority to basis risk should the relationship 
between LIBOR and the e-PRO rate set by the Authority’s lender change in a manner adverse to 
the Authority.  If an adverse change occurs in the relationship between these rates, the expected 
cost savings may not be realized. 

Termination Risk:  The Authority or the Counterparty may terminate the swap agreement if the 
other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  If the swap agreement is terminated, 
the associated floating-rate bonds would no longer carry synthetic interest rates.  Also, if at the 
time of the termination the fair value of the swap agreement is not positive, the Authority would be 
liable to the Counterparty for a payment equal to the swap agreement’s fair value. 

Rollover Risk:  The Authority is exposed to rollover risk if the swap agreement matures or is 
terminated prior to the maturity of the associated debt.  When the swap agreement terminates, the 
Authority will not realize the synthetic rate offered by the swap agreement on the underlying debt 
issue.  
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Swap Payments and Associated Debt:  As of December 31, 2020, debt service requirements of the 
Authority’s hedged outstanding variable rate debt and net swap payments (assuming current 
interest rates remain the same for their term and bonds are called as the swap amortizes) are as 
follows:  

Net Swap
Principal Interest Payments Total

2021  $                         -  $          36,053  $        654,606  $        690,659 
2022                             -              36,053            654,606            690,659 
2023                             -              36,053            654,606            690,659 
2024                             -              36,053            654,606            690,659 
2025                             -              36,053            654,606            690,659 

2026 - 2029                             -            180,263         3,273,028         3,453,291 
2030 - 2034                             -            180,263         3,273,028         3,453,291 
2035 - 2039              7,275,000            158,859         2,880,482       10,314,341 
2040 - 2044            14,335,000              80,328         1,452,949       15,868,277 
2045 - 2047            11,165,000                8,393            151,206       11,324,599 

Total  $        32,775,000  $        788,371  $   14,303,723  $   47,867,094 
 

 

Note 9: Fair Value Measurements 

The Authority has categorized its assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value into a three-
level fair value hierarchy as part of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 72.  The hierarchy 
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the 
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).  The asset or liability’s fair 
value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to maximize the 
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  
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The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets or liabilities in active markets that the Authority has the ability to access. 

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology may include:  quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable 
for the asset or liability; and/or inputs that are derived principally from or 
corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.  If the asset 
or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable 
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair 
value measurement.  In situations where there is little or no market activity for the 
asset or liability, the Authority makes estimates and assumptions related to the 
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used by the Authority for assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.  There have been no changes in the 
methodologies used at December 31, 2020. 

Money Market Fund Shares:  Valued at the published net asset value (NAV), as reported by each 
fund, of the shares held by the Authority at the reporting date.  These funds are deemed to be 
actively traded. 

Federal Agency Obligations:  Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable 
inputs for similar securities. 

Municipal Bonds:  Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for 
similar securities. 

Interest Rate Swaps:  Valued by a third-party using models which include assumptions about the 
USD-SIFMA interest rate at the reporting date.  The Authority uses the fair value provided by the 
third-party without adjustment.  See Note 7. 

For those assets and liabilities measured at fair value, management determines the fair value 
measurement policies.  Those policies and procedures are reassessed at least annually to determine 
if the current valuation techniques are still appropriate.  At that time, the unobservable inputs used 
in the fair value measurements are evaluated and adjusted, as necessary, based on current market 
conditions and other third-party information. 

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the Authority’s 
management believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of these 
assets and liabilities could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
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Following is a summary, by major nature and risks class within each level of the fair value 
hierarchy, of the Authority’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring 
basis as of December 31, 2020: 

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant

in Active Observable Unobservable
Fair Markets Inputs Inputs

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Investment by Fair Value Level
Money market mutual funds  $     243,523,972  $       243,523,972  $                    -  $                      - 
Federal agency obligations         635,326,581                              -     635,326,581                          - 
Municipal bonds             1,680,875                              -         1,680,875                          - 

Total investments measured at fair value  $     880,531,428  $       243,523,972  $ 637,007,456  $                      - 

Hedging Derivative Instruments
Interest rate swaps  $         2,872,898  $                          -  $                    -  $        2,872,898 

 

 

Note 10: Lease Liability 

The Authority leases furniture and office space, the terms of which expire in various years through 
2031.  The furniture lease accrues interest at 6.19%.  Due to the adoption of GASB No. 87, the 
Authority added the building lease as a second lease asset.  The building lease accrues interest at 
5.75%.   

Future principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liability as of December 31, 2020 
are: 

Principal Interest Total

2021 419,981$         310,985$           730,966$         
2022 454,093           285,500             739,593           
2023 442,982           258,458             701,440           
2024 410,049           234,530             644,579           
2025 443,116           210,090             653,206           
2026 - 2030 2,783,956        611,351             3,395,307        
2031 627,332           18,180               645,512           

5,581,509$      1,929,094$        7,510,603$      
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Note 11: Retirement Plan 

Plan Description 

The Authority contributed to the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF), which is 
administered by INPRS as a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  PERF 
was established to provide retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to full-time employees of 
the State of Indiana not covered by another plan, those political subdivisions that elect to 
participate in the retirement plan, and certain INPRS employees.  The fund provides supplemental 
retirement benefits to Public Employees’ Defined Benefit Account (PERF DB) members and 
serves as the primary retirement benefit for the My Choice:  Retirement Savings Plan for Public 
Employees (My Choice Plan) members. New employees hired by the State or a participating 
political subdivision have a one-time election to join either the Public Employees’ Hybrid Plan 
(PERF Hybrid Plan) or the My Choice Plan, which is covered in the Defined Contributions section 
below.  A new hire that is an existing member of PERF Hybrid Plan and was not given the option 
for My Choice is given the option to elect My Choice Plan or remain in PERF Hybrid Plan.  The 
PERF Hybrid Plan consists of two components:  PERF DB, the employer-funded monthly defined-
benefit component, and the Public Employees’ Hybrid Members Defined Contribution Account, 
the defined-contribution component.  

Effective January 1, 2018, funds previously known as annuity savings accounts (which were 
reported within defined-benefit funds) were re-categorized as defined contribution funds based on 
Internal Revenue Private Letter Rulings PLR-193-2016 and PLR-110249-18.  PERF Defined 
Contribution member balances (previously known as annuity savings accounts) reported within 
PERF DB were transferred to the appropriate defined-contribution fund as of January 1, 2018. 

Retirement Benefits - Defined Benefit Pension 

A member who has reached age 65 and has at least ten years of creditable service, or eight years for 
certain elected officials, is eligible for normal retirement and, as such, is entitled to 100 percent of 
the pension benefit component.  This annual pension benefit is equal to 1.1 percent times the 
average annual compensation times the number of years of creditable service.  The average annual 
compensation in this calculation uses the highest 20 calendar quarters of salary in a covered 
position, or only four quarters for an elected official.  All 20 calendar quarters do not need to be 
continuous, but they must be in groups of four consecutive calendar quarters.  The same calendar 
quarter may not be included in two different groups.  Member contributions paid by the employer 
on behalf of the member and severance pay up to $2,000 are included as part of the member’s 
annual compensation.  

A member who has reached age 60 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible for 
normal retirement and, as such, is entitled to 100 percent of the pension benefit.  A member who is 
at least 55 years old and whose age plus number of years of creditable service is at least 85 is 
entitled to 100 percent of the benefits as described above.  
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A member who has reached at least age 50 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible 
for early retirement with a reduced pension.  A member retiring early receives a percentage of the 
normal annual pension benefit.  The percentage of the pension benefit at retirement remains the 
same for the member’s lifetime.  For age 59, the early retirement percentage of the normal annual 
pension benefit is 89 percent.  This amount is reduced five percentage points per year (e.g., age 58 
is 84 percent) to age 50 being 44 percent. 

The monthly pension benefits for members in pay status may be increased periodically as cost of 
living adjustments (COLA).  Such increases are not guaranteed by statute and have historically 
been provided on an “ad hoc” basis and can only be granted by the Indiana General Assembly.  
There was no COLA for the year ended June 30, 2020; however, there was a one-time check (13th 
check) on October 1, which is assumed to continue annually until 2021. 

The PERF Plan also provides disability and survivor benefits.  A member who has at least five 
years of creditable service and becomes disabled while in active service, on FMLA leave, receiving 
workers’ compensation benefits, or receiving employer-provided disability insurance benefits may 
retire for the duration of the disability, if the member has qualified for social security disability 
benefits and has furnished proof of the qualification.  The disability benefit is calculated the same 
as that for a normal retirement without reduction for early retirement.  The minimum benefit is 
$180 per month, or the actuarial equivalent.  

Upon the death in service of a member with 15 or more years of creditable service as of January 1, 
2007, a survivor benefit may be paid to the surviving spouse to whom the member had been 
married for two or more years, or surviving dependent children under the age of 18.  This payment 
is equal to the benefit which would have been payable to a beneficiary if the member had retired at 
age 50 or at death, whichever is later, under an effective election of the joint and survivor option 
available for retirement benefits.  A surviving spouse or surviving dependent children are also 
entitled to a survivor benefit upon the death in service after January 1, 2007, of a member who was 
at least 65 years of age and had at least 10 but not more than 14 years of creditable service. 

Retirement Benefits - Defined Contribution Pension 

The My Choice Plan is a multiple employer defined contribution pension plan that serves as the 
primary retirement benefit for the My Choice:  Retirement Savings Plan for Public Employees (My 
Choice) members.  New employees hired have a one-time election to join either the PERF Hybrid 
Plan or My Choice Plan, which both include defined-contribution funds.  

The Public Employees’ Hybrid Members Defined Contribution Account (PERF Hybrid DC) is the 
defined-contribution component of the Public Employees’ Hybrid Plan.  The Public Employees’ 
Defined Benefit Account is the other component of the Public Employees’ Hybrid Plan.  Member 
contributions are set by statute at three percent of compensation, and the employer may choose to 
make these contributions on behalf of the member.  Members are 100 percent vested in their 
account balance, which includes all contributions and earnings.  
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My Choice:  Retirement Savings Plan for Public Employees (My Choice) is for members who are 
full-time employees of the State of Indiana or a participating political subdivision that elected to 
become members of My Choice.  Member contributions are set by statute at three percent of 
compensation, plus these members may receive additional employer contributions in lieu of the 
Public Employees’ Defined Benefit Account.  The Authority does not currently offer My Choice to 
any of its employees.  Members are 100 percent vested in all member contributions and vest in 
employer contributions in increments of 20% for each full year of service until 100% is reached at 
5 years.  

Investments are self-directed, members may make changes daily, and investments are reported at 
fair value.  Market risk is assumed by the member, and the member may choose among the 
following eight investment options with varying degrees of risk and return potential:  Stable Value 
Fund, Large Cap Equity Index Fund, Small/Mid Cap Equity Fund, International Equity Fund, 
Fixed Income Fund, Inflation-Linked Fixed Income Fund, Target Date Funds, and Money Market 
Fund.  

INPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained at http://www.inprs.in.gov/. 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability is determined by INPRS actuaries as part of their annual actuarial 
valuation for each defined-benefit retirement plan.  Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve 
estimates of the value of reported amounts (e.g., salaries, credited service) and assumptions about 
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future (e.g., mortality, disabilities, retirements, 
employment terminations).  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual review and 
potential modifications, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future.   

Key methods and assumptions used in calculating the total pension liability in the latest actuarial 
valuations are presented below: 

Asset valuation date: June 30, 2020

Liability valuation date and method:

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal - level percent of payroll

Experience study date: Period of four years ended June 30, 2019

Investment rate of return: 6.75%

Cost of living adjustment:

Projected salary increases: 2.75% - 8.75%

Inflation: 2.25%

Varies per year as follows:  2020 through 2021 - 13th check, 2022 through 2033 - 0.40%, 
2034 through 2038 - 0.50%, and 2039 and on - 0.60%

June 30, 2019 - Member census data as of June 30, 2019 was used in the valuation and 
adjusted, where appropriate, to reflect changes between June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2020.  
Standard actuarial roll forward techniques were then used to project the liability 
computed as of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020.
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The long-term return expectation for the defined-benefit retirement plan has been determined by 
using a building-block approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the INPRS Investment 
Policy Statement.  A forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for the return expectation.  
Various real return premiums over the baseline inflation rate have been established for each asset 
class.  The long-term expected nominal rate of return has been determined by calculating a 
weighted-average of the expected real return premiums for each asset class, adding the projected 
inflation rate, and adding the expected return from rebalancing uncorrelated asset classes.  

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Public equity 22.0% 4.4%
Private equity 14.0% 7.6%
Fixed income - ex inflation linked 20.0% 1.9%
Fixed income - inflation linked 7.0% 0.5%
Commodities 8.0% 1.6%
Real estate 7.0% 5.8%
Absolute return 10.0% 2.9%
Risk parity 12.0% 5.5%

100%
 

Total pension liability for the Plan was calculated using the discount rate of 6.75 percent.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from 
employers and where applicable from the members, would at the minimum be made at the 
actuarially determined required rates computed in accordance with the current funding policy 
adopted by the INPRS Board, and contributions required by the State (the non-employer 
contributing entity) would be made as stipulated by State statute.  Projected inflows from 
investment earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (6.75 
percent).  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current Plan members; therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefits to determine the total pension liability for the Plan. 
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Net pension liability is sensitive to changes in the discount rate, and to illustrate the potential 
impact the following table presents the net pension liability of the Plan calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.75 percent, as well as what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%), or one percentage point 
higher (7.75%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)

 $                5,039,498  $                3,091,072  $                1,459,106 
 

Investment Valuation and Benefit Payment Policies 

The pooled and nonpooled investments are reported at fair value by INPRS.   

Pension, disability, special death benefits, and distributions of contributions and interest are 
recognized when due and payable to members or beneficiaries.  Benefits are paid once the 
retirement or survivor applications have been processed and approved.  Distributions of 
contributions and interest from inactive, nonvested members’ annuity savings accounts may be 
requested by members or auto-distributed by the fund when certain criteria are met. 

Funding Policy 

The State is obligated by statute to make contributions to the PERF Hybrid Plan or the My Choice 
Plan.  Any political subdivision that elects to participate in the PERF Hybrid Plan is obligated by 
statute to make contributions to the Plan.  The required contributions are determined by the INPRS 
Board of Trustees based on actuarial investigation and valuation in accordance with IC 5-10.2-2-
11.  The funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined 
rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to fund the pension 
benefits when they become due.  As PERF is a cost-sharing plan, all risks and costs, including 
benefit costs, are shared proportionately by the participating employers.  During the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2020, all participating employers were required to contribute 11.2% of covered 
payroll for members employed by the State.  For the My Choice Plan, all participating employers 
were required to contribute a supplemental 7.1%.  

In October 2018, the funding policy was restated to incorporate changes up to that point, and 
additional edits were made to clarify current practice.  In addition, 2018 SEA 373 introduced a new 
funding mechanism for postretirement benefit increases and restated the actuarially determined 
contribution.  As a result, the funding policy was updated to be in compliance with the new statute.  

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $3,091,072 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability.  The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was 
based on the Authority’s wages as a proportion of total wages for the PERF Hybrid Plan.  The 
proportionate share used at the June 30, 2020 measurement date was 0.0010234.  

85 of 122



 

56 

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 

 
 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense of $292,449, 
which included net amortization of deferred amounts from changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions of $43,511.  At  
December 31, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to the PERF Hybrid Plan from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $          54,765  $          41,502 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments            264,546                        - 
Changes in assumptions                        -            644,050 
Changes in proportion and differences between the Authority’s

contributions and proportionate share contributions              95,887                        - 
Authority’s contributions subsequent 

to the measurement date            348,390                        - 

Total  $        763,588  $        685,552 
 

The Authority reported $348,390 as deferred outflows of resources that will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability for the year ending December 31, 2021.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense (income) as follows: 

2021  $       (253,297)
2022             (80,827)
2023             (48,604)
2024            112,374 

Total future minimum payments  $       (270,354)
 

 

Note 12: Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

The Authority is subject to various claims which arise primarily in the ordinary course of 
conducting its business.  In management’s opinion, the ultimate resolution of such matters will not 
have a material adverse effect on the Authority’s financial position or its results of operations. 
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Investments 

The Authority invests in various investment securities.  Investment securities are exposed to 
various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks.  Due to the level of risk associated with 
certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the 
amounts reported in the accompanying statement of net position. 

Excess Investment Earnings 

In order to preserve the exemption of federal and state income taxation on interest received by the 
bond holders, each bond issue is subject to certain Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and U.S. Treasury 
Regulations for arbitrage.  Under these regulations, the Authority is required to pay the Federal 
government any excess earnings as defined by IRC Section 148(f) on all non-purpose investments 
if such investments were invested at a rate greater than the yield on the bond issue. 

COVID-19 

On March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a national emergency with respect 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  In addition, the United States Congress enacted several COVID-19-
related bills, including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES 
Act”), signed into law on March 27, 2020.  Among other things, the CARES Act provides that 
during the COVID-19 emergency, borrowers of mortgage loans which are FHA insured, VA, HUD 
or Rural Housing guaranteed, or purchased or securitized by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac 
(collectively, “Federal Single-Family Loans”) who are directly or indirectly experiencing economic 
difficulties because of the coronavirus can seek up to 360 days of payment forbearance.  The 
CARES Act also imposed a foreclosure and eviction moratorium on all Federal Single-Family 
Loans for a period of 60-days which commenced March 18, 2020 and ended on May 17, 2020.  In 
addition to this statutory foreclosure and eviction relief, HUD/FHA, and the Federal Housing 
Finance Agency (“FHFA”) also ordered the servicers of Federal Single-Family Loans to suspend 
foreclosures and evictions of Federal Single-Family Loans; HUD/FHA and FHFA extended their 
foreclosure and eviction moratoriums for single-family residences until at least December 31, 
2020. 

The COVID-19 Pandemic is an ongoing situation.  At this time, the Authority cannot predict: 

(i) the duration or extent of the COVID-19 Pandemic or any other outbreak emergency;  

(ii) the duration or expansion of any foreclosure or eviction moratorium affecting the 
Servicer’s ability to foreclose and collect on delinquent mortgage loans;  

(iii) the number of mortgage loans that will be in forbearance or default as a result of the 
COVID-19 Pandemic and subsequent federal, state and local responses thereto, including 
the CARES Act;  

(iv) whether and to what extent the COVID-19 Pandemic or other outbreak or emergency may 
disrupt the local or global economy, real estate markets, manufacturing, or supply chain, 
or whether any such disruption may adversely impact the Authority or its operations;  
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(v) whether or to what extent the Authority or other government agencies may provide 
additional deferrals, forbearances, adjustments, or other changes to payments on mortgage 
loans; or  

(vi) the effect of the COVID-19 Pandemic on the State budget, or whether any such effect may 
adversely impact the Authority or its operations.  

However, the continuation of the COVID-19 Pandemic and the resulting containment and 
mitigation efforts could have economic uncertainties arise which may negatively affect the 
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the Authority, including the reduction 
of overall investment position.  The duration of these uncertainties and the ultimate financial 
effects continue to not be reasonably estimated at this time.  
 

Note 13: Subsequent Events 

Debt Issuance 

On January 14, 2021, the Authority issued $55,945,000 of Indiana Housing and Community 
Development Authority Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series A (2021 Series A 
Bonds).  The 2021 Series A Bonds include serial bonds maturing through 2033, and term bonds, 
which mature in 2036, 2041, 2045 and PAC bonds due 2051.  The 2021 Series A Bonds bear 
interest at rates ranging from 1.35% to 5.00%. 
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Authority’s proportion of the net pension
liability 0.10234% 0.10232% 0.09831% 0.09670% 0.10992% 0.09270% 0.09168% 0.06410%

Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability  $      3,091,072  $   3,381,471  $   3,339,635  $   4,314,313  $   4,988,658 3,775,580$     $   2,409,291  $   2,195,476 

Authority’s covered payroll  $      5,524,718  $   5,330,879  $   5,016,583  $   4,797,552  $   5,268,120 4,440,142$     $   4,476,208  $   3,997,291 

Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 55.9% 63.4% 66.6% 89.9% 94.7% 85.0% 53.8% 54.9%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability (a) 81.4% 80.1% 78.9% 72.7% 71.2% 73.3% 81.1% 74.3%

(a) 2013 - 2017 were adjusted to reflect defined benefit activity only due to split of the defined benefit/contribution plan effective January 1, 2018.

 
* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.  Ten years of information is required to be disclosed and will be added as the information 
becomes available. 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit changes:  No changes. 

Changes of assumption:  As a result of the 2014-2019 Experience Study completed in February 2020, the following changes were made:  1) The future salary increase 
assumption changed from an age-based table ranging from 2.50% to 4.25% to a service-based table ranging from 2.75% to 8.75%;  2) The mortality assumption changed 
from the RP-2014 Total Data Set Mortality Table to the Pub-2010 public Retirement Plans Mortality Plans;  3)  The retirement assumption was updated to an age-based 
table dependent on eligibility for a reduced benefit or unreduced benefit.  Additionally, for actives who are eligible for early retirement, 30% are assumed to commence 
benefits immediately and 70% are assumed to commence benefits at unreduced retirement eligibility (previously 33% and 67%, respectively);  4) The termination 
assumption tables for state members were combined from being split by salary and sex to being one unisex service-based table.  For members in political subdivisions 
earning more than $20,000, the sex-distinct tables were combined to one unisex service-based table, while members in political subdivisions earning less than $20,000 
maintained their sex-distinct age-based table and the rates were updated based on experience;  5) The disability assumption was updated based on recent experience;  6) 
The marital assumption was updated to assume 80% of male members and 65% of female members are married or have a dependent beneficiary (previously 75% and 60%, 
respectively);  7) The load placed on the final average earnings to account for additional wages received upon termination, such as severance or unused sick leave, 
decreased from $400 to $200.  

Changes in actuarial methods:  No changes. 
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution  $    636,878  $    632,393  $    588,395  $    538,661  $       528,036 475,408$       $    508,439 

Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution        636,878        632,393        588,395        538,661           528,036          475,408        508,439 

Contribution deficiency (excess)  $                -  $                -  $                -  $                -  $                   -  $                  -  $                - 

Authority’s covered payroll  $ 5,686,451  $ 5,646,363  $ 5,253,524  $ 4,809,471  $    4,719,016 4,244,707$    $ 4,664,251 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 11.2% 11.2% 11.2% 11.2% 11.2% 11.2% 10.9%

 
* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31.  Ten years of information is required to be disclosed and will be added 
as the information becomes available. 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefit changes:  No changes. 

Changes of assumption:  As a result of the 2014-2019 Experience Study completed in February 2020, the following changes were made:  1) The future 
salary increase assumption changed from an age-based table ranging from 2.50% to 4.25% to a service-based table ranging from 2.75% to 8.75%;  2) The 
mortality assumption changed from the RP-2014 Total Data Set Mortality Table to the Pub-2010 public Retirement Plans Mortality Plans;  3)  The 
retirement assumption was updated to an age-based table dependent on eligibility for a reduced benefit or unreduced benefit.  Additionally, for actives 
who are eligible for early retirement, 30% are assumed to commence benefits immediately and 70% are assumed to commence benefits at unreduced 
retirement eligibility (previously 33% and 67%, respectively);  4) The termination assumption tables for state members were combined from being split 
by salary and sex to being one unisex service-based table.  For members in political subdivisions earning more than $20,000, the sex-distinct tables were 
combined to one unisex service-based table, while members in political subdivisions earning less than $20,000 maintained their sex-distinct age-based 
table and the rates were updated based on experience;  5) The disability assumption was updated based on recent experience;  6) The marital assumption 
was updated to assume 80% of male members and 65% of female members are married or have a dependent beneficiary (previously 75% and 60%, 
respectively);  7) The load placed on the final average earnings to account for additional wages received upon termination, such as severance or unused 
sick leave, decreased from $400 to $200.  

Changes in actuarial methods:  No changes. 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Other Information 
Combining Schedule of Net Position 

December 31, 2020 
 
 

Single Home MBS
General Program  Family  First Pass-thru 2020

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted  $   73,896,147  $   32,722,874  $   29,891,305  $                      -  $                      -  $     136,510,326 
Restricted                        -       96,478,621     134,642,751          14,300,117                 60,642         245,482,131 

Accrued interest receivable
Investments              97,878                        -            189,387                 22,062                          -                309,327 
Investments held against bonds                        -                        -         1,255,831                 53,901               137,210             1,446,942 

Accounts and loans receivable, net         7,875,963       14,674,998                        -                          -                          -           22,550,961 
Other assets                        -              95,207                        -                          -                          -                  95,207 

Total current assets       81,869,988     143,971,700     165,979,274          14,376,080               197,852         406,394,894 

Noncurrent Assets
Investments

Unrestricted       33,969,407                        -       54,107,107                          -                          -           88,076,514 
Restricted                        -                        -       23,515,521            9,799,764                          -           33,315,285 

Investments held against bonds                        -                        -     443,798,143          19,503,583          52,313,931         515,615,657 
Accounts and loans receivable, net              39,092       94,830,102         4,043,016                          -                          -           98,912,210 
Capital assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation            836,656              85,924                        -                          -                          -                922,580 
Leased assets, less accumulated depreciation.         5,378,022                        -                        -                          -                          -             5,378,022 
Interfund accounts       12,835,705      (11,094,871)        (1,740,834)                          -                          -                            - 

Total noncurrent assets       53,058,882       83,821,155     523,722,953          29,303,347          52,313,931         742,220,268 
Total assets     134,928,870     227,792,855     689,702,227          43,679,427          52,511,783      1,148,615,162 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension-related            763,588                        -                        -                          -                          -                763,588 
Accumulated decrease in fair value of derivative                        -                        -         2,872,898                          -                          -             2,872,898 
Deferred refunding costs                        -                        -                        -                          -            1,319,199             1,319,199 

Total deferred outflows of resources            763,588                        -         2,872,898                          -            1,319,199             4,955,685 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources  $ 135,692,458  $ 227,792,855  $ 692,575,125  $      43,679,427  $      53,830,982  $  1,153,570,847 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Positions

Current Liabilities
Bonds payable  $                    -  $                    -  $   12,955,000  $        2,240,000  $                      -  $       15,195,000 
Accrued interest payable                        -                        -         6,818,969                 47,172               137,212             7,003,353 
Unearned revenue              92,000       39,374,853                        -                          -                          -           39,466,853 
Government advances                        -            568,269                        -                          -                          -                568,269 
Capital lease liability            419,981                        -                        -                          -                          -                419,981 
Accounts payable and other liabilities         2,776,692         9,788,698            114,447                          -                          -           12,679,837 

Total current liabilities         3,288,673       49,731,820       19,888,416            2,287,172               137,212           75,333,293 

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds payable                        -                        -     481,930,000          11,920,000          47,467,638         541,317,638 
Original issue premium                        -                        -       16,056,111                 72,160            1,207,676           17,335,947 

Bonds payable, net                        -                        -     497,986,111          11,992,160          48,675,314         558,653,585 
Notes payable                        -         1,619,401                        -                          -                          -             1,619,401 
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap agreements                        -                        -         2,872,898                          -                          -             2,872,898 
Pension liability         3,091,072                        -                        -                          -                          -             3,091,072 
Government advances                        -       31,817,297                        -                          -                          -           31,817,297 
Capital lease liability         5,161,528                        -                        -                          -                          -             5,161,528 

Total noncurrent liabilities         8,252,600       33,436,698     500,859,009          11,992,160          48,675,314         603,215,781 
Total liabilities       11,541,273       83,168,518     520,747,425          14,279,332          48,812,526         678,549,074 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension-related            685,552                        -                        -                          -                          -                685,552 

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets            633,169              85,924                        -                          -                          -                719,093 
Restricted                        -     122,910,410       89,380,735          29,400,095            5,018,456         246,709,696 
Unrestricted     122,832,464       21,628,003       82,446,965                          -                          -         226,907,432 

Total net position     123,465,633     144,624,337     171,827,700          29,400,095            5,018,456         474,336,221 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and net position  $ 135,692,458  $ 227,792,855  $ 692,575,125  $      43,679,427  $      53,830,982  $  1,153,570,847 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Other Information 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

Single MBS
General Program  Family Home First Pass-thru 2020

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Revenues

Interest income
Investments  $       2,163,048  $            86,991  $       2,813,103  $          512,868  $                 717  $       5,576,727 
Investments held against bonds -                        -                        15,970,367       2,318,998         2,530,224         20,819,589       
Loans -                        1,874,218         -                        -                        -                        1,874,218         

Fee income 5,880,664         -                        -                        -                        -                        5,880,664         
Program income 9,627,062         430,527,375     -                        -                        -                        440,154,437     
Gain on sale of Next Home investments 9,830,782         -                        -                        -                        -                        9,830,782         
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 271,614            -                        11,320,223       (1,982,410)        635,712                    10,245,139 
Other income 1,648,598         -                        -                        -                        -                        1,648,598         

Total revenues         29,421,768       432,488,584         30,103,693              849,456           3,166,653       496,030,154 

Expenses

Investment expense (down payment assistance) 7,054,474         -                        1,710,176         -                        -                                  8,764,650 
Loss on sale of investments 394,318            -                        841,486            119,957            -                                  1,355,761 
Interest expense 104,872            246,595            13,033,960       2,005,853         2,259,376                 17,650,656 
Issuance costs -                        -                        1,883,868         -                        -                                  1,883,868 
Program expenses 1,802,277         407,670,793     200,051            -                        -                              409,673,121 
General and administrative expenses 4,034,319         15,411,845       1,310,871         260,900            13,000                      21,030,935 

Total expenses         13,390,260       423,329,233         18,980,412           2,386,710           2,272,376       460,358,991 

Operating Income 16,031,508       9,159,351         11,123,281       (1,537,254)        894,277                    35,671,163 

Transfers

Interfund transfers (557,817)           557,817            2,412,377         (2,193,746)        (218,631)                                    - 

Increase in Net Position         15,473,691           9,717,168         13,535,658         (3,731,000)              675,646         35,671,163 

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as 
previously reported       108,191,530       134,907,169       158,292,042         33,131,095           4,342,810       438,864,646 

Change in accounting principal (199,588)           -                                                 -                          -                          -            (199,588)

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated       107,991,942       134,907,169       158,292,042         33,131,095           4,342,810       438,665,058 

Net Position, End of Year  $   123,465,633  $   144,624,337  $   171,827,700  $     29,400,095  $       5,018,456  $   474,336,221 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Other Information 
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

MBS
General Program Single Family Home First Pass-thru 2020

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts for services  $       16,688,571  $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $       16,688,571 
Receipts for program revenue 2,907,202           443,698,273       -                          -                          -                          446,605,475       
Principal received on loans receivable 1,147                  -                          -                          -                          -                          1,147                  
Interest received on investments 2,290,007           86,991                2,967,142           537,394              717                     5,882,251           
Interest received on investments held against bonds -                          -                          15,086,497         2,273,045           2,267,011           19,626,553         
Interest received on loans -                          1,874,218           -                          -                          -                          1,874,218           
Payments for program expenses (1,802,277)          (423,855,409)      (200,051)             -                          -                          (425,857,737)      
Interest paid on bonds and bank loans (104,872)             (246,595)             (11,487,078)        (2,188,272)          (1,955,353)          (15,982,170)        
Debt issuance costs incurred                            -                            -           (1,883,868)                            -                            -           (1,883,868)
Investment expense                            -                            -           (1,710,176)                            -                            -           (1,710,176)
Payments for suppliers and employees         (10,589,465)                            -           (1,251,763)              (277,196)                (13,000)         (12,131,424)
Interfund activity           (8,496,294)             7,483,151             1,013,143                            -                            -                            - 

Net cash provided by operating activities                894,019           29,040,629             2,533,846                344,971                299,375           33,112,840 

Cash Flows From Noncapital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from bond issues                            -                            -         184,258,109                            -                            -         184,258,109 
Repayments and redemption of bonds and bank loans                            -                (73,075)         (44,594,256)         (80,649,935)         (14,806,654)       (140,123,920)
Transfers              (557,817)                557,817             2,412,377           (2,193,746)              (218,631)                            - 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital and related financing activities              (557,817)                484,742         142,076,230         (82,843,681)         (15,025,285)           44,134,189 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            - 
Payments on capital lease              (387,805)                            -                            -                            -                            -              (387,805)

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities              (387,805)                            -                            -                            -                            -              (387,805)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments           33,740,350                            -           37,087,400           11,278,039                            -           82,105,789 
Principal received on investments held against bonds                            -                            -         126,117,508           81,273,761           14,725,911         222,117,180 
Purchases of investments held against bonds                            -                            -       (174,452,276)                            -                            -       (174,452,276)
Purchase of DPA loans                            -                            -           (3,800,981)                            -                            -           (3,800,981)
Purchase of investments                            -                            -         (29,002,100)           (5,000,000)                            -         (34,002,100)

Net cash provided by investing activities           33,740,350                            -         (44,050,449)           87,551,800           14,725,911           91,967,612 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents           33,688,747           29,525,371         100,559,627             5,053,090                           1         168,826,836 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1           40,207,400           99,676,124           63,974,429             9,247,027                  60,641         213,165,621 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31  $       73,896,147  $     129,201,495  $     164,534,056  $       14,300,117  $              60,642  $     381,992,457 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash  $       10,603,282  $     127,865,203  $                        -  $                        -  $                        -  $     138,468,485 
Money market investments           63,292,865             1,336,292         164,534,056           14,300,117                  60,642         243,523,972 

Total cash and cash equivalents  $       73,896,147  $     129,201,495  $     164,534,056  $       14,300,117  $              60,642  $     381,992,457 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Other Information 
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

MBS
General Program Single Family Home First Pass-thru 2020

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to Net Cash  
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

Change in net position  $       16,031,508  $         9,159,351  $       11,123,281  $       (1,537,254)  $            894,277  $       35,671,163 
Adjustment to reconcile change in net position to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net (increase) decrease in fair value of investments              (271,614)                            -         (11,320,223)             1,982,410              (635,712)         (10,245,139)
Loss on sale of investments                394,318                            -                841,486                119,957                            -             1,355,761 
Depreciation                998,474                  43,615                            -                            -                            -             1,042,089 
Amortization of bond premium/discount                            -                            -              (811,330)              (265,999)              (305,253)           (1,382,582)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts and loan receivable           (7,281,712)             7,317,887                            -                            -                            -                  36,175 
Accrued interest receivable                126,959                            -                  81,499                244,572                  42,040                495,070 
Other assets           (8,496,294)             8,120,371             1,013,143                            -                            -                637,220 
Deferred pension costs              (196,860)                            -                            -                            -                            -              (196,860)
Deferred refunding costs                            -                            -                            -                            -                346,061                346,061 
Unearned revenue              (108,474)             5,098,919                            -                            -                            -             4,990,445 
Accounts payable and other liabilities              (154,717)              (816,386)                  59,108                (16,296)                            -              (928,291)
Accrued interest payable                            -                            -             1,546,882              (182,419)                (42,038)             1,322,425 
Net pension liability              (290,669)                            -                            -                            -                            -              (290,669)
Deferred pension revenue                143,100                            -                            -                            -                            -                143,100 
Government advances                            -                116,872                            -                            -                            -                116,872 

Total adjustments         (15,137,489)           19,881,278           (8,589,435)             1,882,225              (594,902)           (2,558,323)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  $            894,019  $       29,040,629  $         2,533,846  $            344,971  $            299,375  $       33,112,840 
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See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 1 

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

Federal Grantor / Pass - Through Grantor or Cluster Title

Federal CFDA 
Number

Pass Through to 
Subrecipients

Expenditures Paid 
Directly by the 

Authority
Total Federal 
Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Rural Rental Housing Loans 10.415  $                                  -  $                  1,696,910  $                  1,696,910 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture                                      -                      1,696,910                      1,696,910 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Housing Counseling Assistance Program 14.169                                      -                         111,483                         111,483 

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program (Section 8 Project-Based Cluster) 14.195                   196,580,410                                     -                  196,580,410 

Indiana Office of Rural and Community Affairs (pass-through entity)

    Community Development Block Grants (a) 14.228                     24,839,410                           63,842                    24,903,252 

Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231                       2,532,381                         113,103                      2,645,484 

COVID-19  - Emergency Solutions Grant 14.231                       1,525,154                         526,746                      2,051,900 

Total Emergency Solutions Grant                       4,057,535                         639,849                      4,697,384 

Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239                     17,008,490                    10,205,061                    27,213,551 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241                          956,638                           30,915                         987,553 

COVID-19 - Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241                            54,148                             5,358                           59,506 

Total Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS                       1,010,786                           36,273                      1,047,059 

Continuum of Care Program 14.267                       5,598,021                         951,477                      6,549,498 

Housing Trust Fund 14.275                                      -                         677,094                         677,094 

Performance Based Contract Administrator Programs 14.327                                      -                         890,664                         890,664 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (Housing Voucher Cluster) 14.871                     26,781,795                      5,310,078                    32,091,873 

COVID-19 - Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (Housing Voucher Cluster) 14.871                                      -                         456,100                         456,100 

Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers Mainstream (Housing Voucher Cluster) 14.879                            93,777                             6,081                           99,858 

COVID-19 - Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers Mainstream (Housing Voucher Cluster) 14.879                                      -                             2,549                             2,549 

Total Housing Voucher Cluster                     26,875,572                      5,774,808                    32,650,380 

Family Unification Program 14.880                              1,543                                     -                             1,543 

Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 14.905                          195,017                           35,113                         230,130 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                   276,166,784                    19,385,664                  295,552,448 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY:

COVID -19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019                                      -                    47,294,668                    47,294,668 

Total U.S. Department of Treasury                                      -                    47,294,668                    47,294,668 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042                       5,085,191                         364,109                      5,449,300 

Total U.S. Department of Energy                       5,085,191                         364,109                      5,449,300 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Temporary Housing for Needy Families (TANF Cluster) 93.558                          576,016                           17,758                         593,774 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 93.568                       8,957,589                    62,553,746                    71,511,335 

COVID - 19 - Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 93.568                          604,515                           17,146                         621,661 

Total Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program                       9,562,104                    62,570,892                    72,132,996 

Community Services Block Grant 93.569                       9,428,114                         583,608                    10,011,722 

COVID - 19 - Community Services Block Grant 93.569                       2,253,208                             8,205                      2,261,413 

Total - Community Services Block Grant                     11,681,322                         591,813                    12,273,135 

Assets for Independence Demonstration Program 93.602                            19,040                         156,623                         175,663 

Block Grants for Community Mental Health 93.958                                      -                           16,000                           16,000 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services                     21,838,482                    63,353,086                    85,191,568 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards  $               303,090,457  $              132,094,437  $              435,184,894 

(a)
Pass-through  Identifying Numbers:  A192-IH-PSH12-001, A192-IH-PSC16-001, A192-IH-PSH18-001, A192-10-PSC-DR2-001, A192-20-MOU-101, 
STIND_0000000000000000000041392_0, STIND_0000000000000000000041413_0(1)
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

 

Notes to Schedule 

1. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the 
federal award activity of the Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority (the 
Authority) under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2020.    
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended 
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the 
Authority. 

2. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance 
or other applicable regulatory guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not 
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  Negative amounts, if any, shown on the 
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts 
reported as expenditures in prior years.  The Authority has elected not to use the 10 percent 
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

3. The federal loan programs listing subsequently are administered directly by the Authority, 
and balance and transactions relating to these programs are included in the Authority’s basic 
financial statements.  Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during 
the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule.  The balance of 
loans outstanding at December 31, 2020, consist of: 

Outstanding Balance 
at December 31,

CFDA Number Program Name 2020

10.415 Rural Rental Housing Loans 1,638,219$                          
14.228 Community Development Block Grants 15,894,837                          
14.239 Home Investment Partnerships Program 16,490,728                          

34,023,784$                        

 

During 2020, the Authority granted noncash assistance in the form of loans totaling $323,683 
for the Home Investment Partnerships Program. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Indiana 
Housing and Community Development Authority (Authority), which comprise the statement of net 
position as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2021, which included an emphasis of matter 
paragraph regarding adoption of a new accounting standard. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

Indianapolis, Indiana  
April 15, 2021 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority’s (Authority) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2020.  The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.   

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Authority’s 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2020.   

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning 
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform 
Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2020, and have issued our report thereon dated April 15, 2021, which contained an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements, and which contained an emphasis of matter paragraph related 
to adoption of a new accounting standard.  Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an 
opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.  The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements.  
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 

 

Indianapolis, Indiana 
April 15, 2021 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

 

Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

1. The type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) 
was: 

 Unmodified    Qualified    Adverse   Disclaimer 
 

2. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies)?  Yes  None reported  

Material weakness(es)?  Yes   No  

 

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements 
was disclosed by the audit? 

 
 Yes 

 
 No 

 

Federal Awards 

4. The independent auditor’s report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards 
programs disclosed: 

Significant deficiency(ies)?  Yes  None reported  

Material weakness(es)?  Yes   No  

 

5. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor’s report on compliance for major federal awards 
were: 

 

 Unmodified     Qualified    Adverse   Disclaimer 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 

 
 
6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by 2 CFR 

200.516(a)? 
 

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

 

7. The Authority’s major programs were: 

Cluster/Program CFDA Number 

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster 14.195 
Housing Voucher Cluster 14.871 & 14.879 
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 

 
 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $3,000,000. 

 

9. The Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee?  Yes  No 
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Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
(A Component Unit of the State of Indiana) 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards 

Reference 
Number 

 
Finding 

 No matters are reportable. 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance 

Reference 
Number Finding 

 No matters are reportable. 
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Board of Directors 
Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority 
Indianapolis, Indiana 

As part of our audits of the financial statements and compliance of Indiana Housing and Community 
Development Authority (Authority) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, we wish to 
communicate the following to you. 

AUDIT SCOPE AND RESULTS 

Auditor’s Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United 
States of America and the Standards Applicable to Financial Audits Contained in 
Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States and U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Uniform Guidance is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about the 
financial statements and about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred.  In performing auditing procedures, we establish scopes of audit tests in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  Our engagement does not include a detailed 
audit of every transaction.  Our engagement letter more specifically describes our responsibilities. 

These standards require communication of significant matters related to the financial statement and 
compliance audits that are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in 
overseeing the financial reporting process.  Such matters are communicated in the remainder of this 
letter or have previously been communicated during other phases of the audit.  The standards do not 
require the auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be 
communicated with those charged with governance. 

Audits of the financial statements and compliance do not relieve management or those charged with 
governance of their responsibilities.  Our engagement letter more specifically describes your 
responsibilities. 

Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

The Authority’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 of the audited financial 
statements. 

EXHIBIT F

109 of 122



 

2 

GASB 87, Leases 

Effective January 1, 2020, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87).  GASB 87 creates one model for recognizing leases for both 
lessees and lessors.  Substantially all leases are recognized on the lessees’ statement of net position.  
In the activity statement, lessees no longer report rent expense for the previously classified operating 
leases but instead report interest expense on the liability and amortization expense related to the asset.  
Lessors recognize a lease receivable and corresponding deferred inflow of resources.  Interest income 
associated with the receivable are recognized using the effective interest method.  

Alternative Accounting Treatments 

We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for policies and practices for material 
items, including recognition, measurement and disclosure considerations related to the accounting for 
specific transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows: 

In connection with the adoption of GASB 87, Leases, management has elected a capitalization policy 
for right-of-use assets of $5,000, which is consistent with their fixed asset capitalization policy. 

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on 
its judgments.  The following areas involve significant areas of such estimates for which we are 
prepared to discuss management’s estimation process and our procedures for testing the 
reasonableness of those estimates: 

 Allowance for uncollectible receivables, including loans 

 Fair value of derivative instruments 

 Net pension liability 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are 
prepared to discuss the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures: 

 Note 3 - Adoption of GASB 87 

 Note 6 - Capital and Lease Assets 

 Note 7 - Bonds Payable 

 Note 10 - Lease Liability 
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Audit Adjustments 

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts.  
Management evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments which, in its judgment, are 
required to prevent the financial statements from being materially misstated.  A misstatement is a 
difference between the amount, classification, presentation or disclosure of a reported financial 
statement item and that which is required for the item to be presented fairly in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework.  Some adjustments proposed were not recorded because 
their aggregate effect is not currently material; however, they involve areas in which adjustments in 
the future could be material, individually or in the aggregate.   

Areas in which adjustments were proposed include: 

Proposed Audit Adjustments Recorded 

 To adjust revenue and expense related to the ER Disaster Relief Fund 

Proposed Audit Adjustments Not Recorded 

 Attached is a summary of uncorrected misstatements we aggregated during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented that were determined by 
management to be immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, but more than 
trivial to the financial statements as a whole. 

Auditor’s Judgments About the Quality of the Entity’s Accounting Principles 

During the course of the audit, we made the following observations regarding the Authority’s 
application of accounting principles: 

 No matters are reportable 

Other Material Communications 

Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit: 

 Management representation letter (attached) 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our 
audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist 
that were not identified. 
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A deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and 
correct misstatements on a timely basis.  

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

We observed the following matter that we consider to be a deficiency.   

Deficiency 

ER Disaster Relief Adjustment 

An adjustment was identified to correct the revenue and expense associated with a new non-federal 
program that the Authority had started in the current year.  The Authority’s internal control 
environment did not identify these adjustments in a timely manner, which ultimately resulted in the 
adjustments being recorded.  We recommend that the Authority isolate these unusual transactions in 
the future and establish a policy in which to review the entries to ensure that they are appropriate.  
Given these unusual programs will not occur on an annual basis, establishing this policy will ensure 
that they are identified in advance of any adjustments being identified.   

OTHER MATTERS 

Although not considered material weaknesses, significant deficiencies or deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting, we observed the following matters and offer these comments and 
suggestions with respect to matters which came to our attention during the course of the audit of the 
financial statements.  Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on 
the financial statements and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies and 
procedures that may exist.  However, these matters are offered as constructive suggestions for the 
consideration of management as part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving financial 
and administrative practices and procedures.  We can discuss these matters further at your 
convenience and may provide implementation assistance for changes or improvements. 

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 

The primary objectives GASB 91 are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations 
by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, 
(2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.  GASB 91 
clarifies the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishes that a conduit debt obligation 
is not a liability of the issuer; establishes standards for accounting and financial reporting of 
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations; and improves required note disclosures. 

The requirements of GASB 91 are effective for the Authority’s 2022 fiscal year.  Earlier application 
is encouraged. 

  

112 of 122



 

5 

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 

Some governments have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received 
depend on an interbank offered rate (IBOR)—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR).  The Authority’s variable rate debt and related interest rate swaps are examples of such 
financial instruments.  As a result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist 
in its current form, prompting governments to amend or replace financial instruments for the purpose 
of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates by either (a) changing the reference rate or (b) adding 
or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.  The objective of GASB 93 is to address 
the accounting and financial reporting effects that result from the replacement of LIBORs with other 
reference rates in order to preserve the reliability, relevance, consistency, and comparability of 
reported information. 

The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for the Authority’s 2023 
fiscal year.  All other requirements of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s 2022 fiscal year.  

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 

It has become common for governments to enter into subscription-based contracts to use vendor-
provided IT.  Subscription-based Information technology arrangements (SBITAs) provide 
governments with access to vendors’ IT software and associated tangible capital assets for 
subscription payments without granting governments perpetual license or title to the IT software and 
associated tangible capital assets.  The objective of GASB 96 is to better meet the information needs 
of financial statement users by (a) establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for SBITAs; (b) improving the comparability of financial statements among 
governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the understandability, reliability, 
relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs. 

Under GASB 96, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an 
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability.  A government should recognize the 
subscription liability at the commencement of the subscription term, which is when the subscription 
asset is placed into service.  The subscription liability should be initially measured at the present 
value of subscription payments expected to be made during the subscription term.  Future 
subscription payments should be discounted using the interest rate the SBITA vendor charges the 
government, which may be implicit, or the government’s incremental borrowing rate if the interest 
rate is not readily determinable.  A government should recognize amortization of the discount on the 
subscription liability as an outflow of resources (for example, interest expense) in subsequent 
financial reporting periods. 

The requirements of GASB 96 are effective for the Authority’s 2023 fiscal year.  Assets and liabilities 
resulting from SBITAs should be recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that 
existed at the beginning of the fiscal year in which this Statement is implemented.   

* * * * * * * * * * 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of 
Directors, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

 

April 15, 2021 
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Before Subsequent to
Misstatements Misstatements Misstatements % Change

Current Assets 406,394,894 406,394,894

Non-Current Assets & Deferred Outflows 747,175,953 1,185,000 748,360,953 0.16%

Current Liabilities (75,333,293) (75,333,293)

Non-Current Liabilities & Deferred Inflows (603,901,333) (1,185,000) (605,086,333) 0.20%

Current Ratio 5.40 5.40

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 1,153,570,847 1,185,000 1,154,755,847 0.10%

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows (679,234,626) (1,185,000) (680,419,626) 0.17%

Total Net Position (474,336,221) (474,336,221)

Revenues (496,032,355) (496,032,355)

Expenses 460,361,192 460,361,192

Change in Net Position (35,671,163) (35,671,163)

Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority
ATTACHMENT

This analysis and the attached "Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements (Adjustments Passed)" reflect the effects on the financial 
statements if the uncorrected misstatements identified were corrected.

Business Type Activities (Government-Wide Statements)
QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS
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Governmental Activities (Government-Wide Statements)
SCHEDULE OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS (ADJUSTMENTS PASSED)

Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent Revenues Expenses Net Position
Change in Net 

Position Net Position
Description Financial Statement Line Item DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR) DR     (CR)

To correct loan amounts originally 
recorded as expenses in 2019 and 
2020

F
0 1,185,000 0 (1,185,000) 0 0 0 0 0 

Accounts and loan receivable 1,185,000
Government advances (1,185,000)
Program income 1,185,000
Program expenses (1,185,000)

Total passed adjustments 0 1,185,000 0 (1,185,000) 0 0 0 0 0

Impact on Change in Net Position 0

Impact on Net Position 0

Factual (F), 
Judgmental (J) or 

Projected (P)

Client:  Indiana Housing and Community Development Authority
Period Ending:  December 31, 2020

Assets & Deferred Outflows Liabilities & Deferred Inflows Net Effect on Following Year
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Representation of: 
Indiana Housing & Community Development Authority (IHCDA) 
30 South Meridian Street, Suite 900 
Indianapolis, IN  46204 
 
Provided to: 
BKD, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
201 N. Illinois Street, Suite 700 
Indianapolis, IN  46244 
 
 
The undersigned (“We”) are providing this letter in connection with BKD’s audit of our financial statements 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 and your audit of our compliance with requirements 
applicable to each of our major federal awards programs as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
Our representations are current and effective as of the date of BKD’s report:  April 15, 2021. 
 
Our engagement with BKD is based on our contract for services dated:  December 2, 2020. 

Our Responsibility and Consideration of Material Matters 

We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements subject to BKD’s 
report in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies; establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, operations, and compliance; and preventing and detecting fraud.  
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable 
person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 

Confirmation of Matters Specific to the Subject Matter of BKD’s Report 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following:  
 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our contract, for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of: 
 

a. Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

b. Internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 53CA57BE-4E99-497F-9C78-6C7EBAB394B9
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3. We have reviewed and approved a draft of the financial statements and related notes referred to 

above, which you prepared in connection with your audit of our financial statements.  We 
acknowledge that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements and related 
notes. 
 

4. We have provided you with: 
 

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 
 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 
 

d. All minutes of meetings of the governing body held through the date of this letter or 
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.  
All unsigned copies of minutes provided to you are copies of our original minutes approved 
by the governing body, if applicable, and maintained as part of our records. 
 

e. All significant contracts and grants. 
 

5. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 

6. We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not adequately prevented 
or detected by our procedures with respect to: 
 

a. Misappropriation of assets. 
 

b. Misrepresented or misstated assets, liabilities or net position. 
 

7. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the 
attached schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

 
8. We have no knowledge of any known or suspected fraudulent financial reporting or 

misappropriation of assets involving: 
 

a. Management or employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 
 

b. Others, where activities of others could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

9. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received 
in communications from employees, customers, regulators, suppliers, or others. 
 

10. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of 
fraud and disclosed to you any such risk identified.  
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11. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.  Related party relationships and transactions 
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
We understand that the term related party refers to an affiliate, management and members of their 
immediate families, component units, and any other party with which the entity may deal if the 
entity can significantly influence, or be influenced by, the management or operating policies of the 
other.  The term affiliate refers to a party that directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or 
is under common control with, the entity. 
 

12. Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no: 
 

a. Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrying values or classifications of assets 
and liabilities. 
 

b. Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded in the financial records. 
 

c. Material gain/loss contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including those arising 
from environmental remediation obligations. 
 

d. Events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date through the date of this letter 
requiring adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 
 

e. Agreements to purchase assets previously sold. 
 

f. Restrictions on cash balances or compensating balance agreements. 
 

g. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable. 
 

13. We have disclosed to you all known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
 

14. We have no reason to believe the entity owes any penalties or payments under the Employer Shared 
Responsibility Provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act nor have we received 
any correspondence from the IRS or other agencies indicating such payments may be due. 
 

15. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should 
be considered when preparing the financial statements.  The effects of all known actual or possible 
litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

16. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses from: 
 

a. Uncollectible receivables. 
 

b. Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or above prevailing market 
prices. 
 

17. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the entity has: 
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a. Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and they are not subject to any liens, pledges, or 
other encumbrances. 
 

b. Complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements, for which noncompliance 
would materially affect the financial statements. 
 

18. The financial statements disclose all significant estimates and material concentrations known to us.  
Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date which could change materially within 
the next year.  Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, 
or markets for which events could occur which would significantly disrupt normal finances within 
the next year.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 

19. The fair values of financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities, if any, recognized in the financial 
statements or disclosed in the notes thereto are reasonable estimates based on the methods and 
assumptions used.  The methods and significant assumptions used result in measurements of fair 
value appropriate for financial statement recognition and disclosure purposes and have been applied 
consistently from period to period, taking into account any changes in circumstances.  The 
significant assumptions appropriately reflect market participant assumptions. 
 

20. We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent status) by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant regulatory agency with authority to 
enforce environmental laws and regulations. 
 

21. With respect to any nonattest services you have provided us during the year, including assisting 
with the preparation of the financial statements: 
 

a. We have designated a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and 
accountable for overseeing the nonattest services. 
 

b. We have established and monitored the performance of the nonattest services to ensure 
they meet our objectives. 
 

c. We have made any and all decisions involving management functions with respect to the 
nonattest services and accept full responsibility for such decisions. 
 

d. We have evaluated the adequacy of the services performed and any findings that resulted. 
 

22. We have notified you of any instances of noncompliance with applicable disclosure requirements 
of the SEC Rule 15c2-12 and applicable state laws. 
 

23. With regard to deposit and investment activities: 
 

a. All deposit, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and investment transactions 
have been made in accordance with legal and contractual requirements. 

 
b. Disclosures of deposit and investment balances and risks in the financial statements are 

consistent with our understanding of the applicable laws regarding enforceability of any 
pledges of collateral. 
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c. We understand that your audit does not represent an opinion regarding the enforceability 
of any collateral pledges. 

 
24. As an entity subject to Government Auditing Standards: 

 
a. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 

and provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 
 

b. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements that have a direct and material effect on the determination of amounts 
in our financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

 
c. We have identified and disclosed to you any violations or possible violations of laws, 

regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements whose effects should be 
considered for recognition and/or disclosure in the financial statements or for your 
reporting on noncompliance. 

 
d. We have taken or will take timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, abuse, illegal 

acts, or violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements that you or other auditors 
report. 

 
e. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

 
f. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, 

performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives of your audit and the 
corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and recommendations made in 
such audits, attestation engagements, or other studies. 

 
g. We have provided our views on any findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well 

as our planned corrective actions with respect thereto, to you for inclusion in the findings 
and recommendations referred to in your report on internal control over financial reporting 
and on compliance and other matters based on your audit of the financial statements 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
25. With regard to federal awards programs: 

 
a. We have identified in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards all assistance provided 

(either directly or passed through other entities) by federal agencies in the form of grants, 
contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property, cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, 
commodities, insurance, direct appropriations, or in any other form. 

 
b. We have identified the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of 

Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement regarding activities allowed or 
unallowed; allowable costs/cost principles; cash management; eligibility; equipment and 
real property management; matching, level of effort, earmarking; period of performance of 
federal funds; procurement and suspension and debarment; program income; reporting; 
subrecipient monitoring; and special tests and provisions that are applicable to each of our 
federal awards programs.  We have identified to you our interpretation of any applicable 
compliance requirements subject to varying interpretations. 
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c. We are responsible for complying, and have complied, with the requirements of Uniform 
Guidance. 

 
d. We are responsible to understand and comply with the requirements of federal statutes, 

regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards related to each of our federal 
awards programs and have disclosed to you any and all instances of noncompliance with 
those requirements occurring during the period of your audit or subsequent thereto to the 
date of this letter of which we are aware.  Except for any instances of noncompliance we 
have disclosed to you, we believe the entity has complied with all applicable compliance 
requirements. 

 
e. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 

compliance to provide reasonable assurance we have administered each of our federal 
awards programs in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the federal awards. 

 
f. We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any 

other correspondence or documentation relevant to each of our federal awards programs 
and to our compliance with applicable requirements of those programs. 

 
g. The information presented in federal awards program financial reports and claims for 

advances and reimbursements is supported by the books and records from which our 
financial statements have been prepared. 

 
h. The costs charged to federal awards are in accordance with applicable cost principles. 

 
i. The reports provided to you related to federal awards programs are true copies of reports 

submitted or electronically transmitted to the federal awarding agency, the applicable 
payment system or pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. 

 
j. Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with Title 2 U.S. 

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) regarding 
cost principles. 

 
k. We have monitored any subrecipients to determine that they have expended federal awards 

in accordance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the 
subaward and have met the audit and other requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 

 
l. We have taken appropriate corrective action on a timely basis after receipt of any 

subrecipient’s auditor’s report that identified findings and questioned costs pertaining to 
federal awards programs passed through to the subrecipient by us. 

 
m. We have considered the results of any subrecipient’s audits received and made any 

necessary adjustments to our books and records. 
 

n. We have disclosed to you any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the applicable compliance 
requirements for each of our federal awards programs, including any communications 
received from the end of the period of your audit through the date of this letter. 
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o. We have identified to you any previous compliance audits, attestation engagements, and 
internal or external monitoring related to the objectives of your compliance audit, including 
findings received and corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and 
recommendations made in such audits, attestation engagements, or other monitoring. 

 
p. Except as described in the schedule of findings and questioned costs, we are in agreement 

with the findings contained therein and our views regarding any disagreements with such 
findings are consistent, as of the date of this letter, with the description thereof in that 
schedule. 

 
q. We are responsible for taking corrective action on any audit findings and have developed 

a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of Uniform Guidance. 
 
r. The summary schedule of prior audit findings correctly states the status of all audit findings 

of the prior audit’s schedule of findings and questioned costs and any uncorrected open 
findings included in the prior audit’s summary schedule of prior audit findings as of the 
date of this letter. 

 
s. The reporting package does not contain any protected personally identifiable information. 

 
26. The supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 

consisting of management’s discussion and analysis, (budgetary comparisons, modified approach 
to infrastructure, pension, and other postemployment benefit information), has been prepared and 
is measured and presented in conformity with the applicable GASB pronouncements, and we 
acknowledge our responsibility for the information.  The information contained therein is based on 
all facts, decisions, and conditions currently known to us and is measured using the same methods 
and assumptions as were used in the preparation of the financial statements.  We believe the 
significant assumptions underlying the measurement and/or presentation of the information are 
reasonable and appropriate.  There has been no change from the preceding period in the methods 
of measurement and presentation. 
 

27. With regard to supplementary information: 
 

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary information 
in accordance with the applicable criteria. 
 

b. We believe the supplementary information is fairly presented, both in form and content, in 
accordance with the applicable criteria. 
 

c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information are 
unchanged from those used in the prior period. 
 

d. We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement 
and/or presentation of the supplementary information are reasonable and appropriate. 
 

e. If the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we 
acknowledge we will make the audited financial statements readily available to intended 
users of the supplementary information no later than the date such information and the 
related auditor’s report are issued. 
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